
 
 

 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020) 
came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable councils to 
hold remote committee meetings during the Covid 19 pandemic 
period. This is to ensure local authorities can conduct business 
during this current public health emergency. 

This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, via 
Zoom. 

Please ask for:  
Jonah Anthony 

 

 
12 February 2021 

 

Dear Councillor 
 

 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CLIMATE CHANGE SUB-GROUP to be held on Thursday 25 February 2021 virtually via 
Zoom (Meeting ID and Password circulated). 
 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 
2020 (previously circulated). 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 8  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY (Pages 5 - 66) 
 

 To discuss the feedback received during the consultation on the draft Climate 
Change Strategy and review the proposed final Strategy ahead of submission to 
the Cabinet for decision. 
 

7.   ACTIVITY UPDATE  
 

 Update from the Head of Planning on relevant activities undertaken by Officers. 
 

8.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

9.   DATE OF FUTURE MEETING  
 

10.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for Item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100(A)(3) and Paragraphs 2 (Information likely to reveal the identity of 
an individual), and 6 (Statutory notice or order)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act (as amended). 
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 
 

PART II 
 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 

 

Circulation: Councillors E.Boulton 
M.Holloway 
F.Marsh 
H.Quenet 
 

D.Richardson 
J.Weston 
S.Wrenn 
 

 Executive Member (Public Protection, Governance and Climate Change 
(F.Thomson) 
 

Chief Executive (K. Ng)  
Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) (N.Long) 
Head of Public Health and Protection (J.Harding) 
Head of Planning (C.Haigh) 
Head of Environment (D.Reyner) 
Tree Officer (O.Waring) 
Energy Efficiency Officer (V.Appasawmy) 
Economic Development Officer (L.Devayya) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Jonah 
Anthony, Governance Services Unit on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 



Part I 
Main author: Colin Haigh 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson 
All wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CLIMATE CHANGE MEMBER GROUP 25 FEBRUARY 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY 
 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 The Council has declared a climate change emergency, created a Climate 

Change Member Group and agreed to prepare a strategy and action plan to help 
tackle the agenda.  This includes an objective for the Council to seek to become 
carbon net zero by 2030, as well as efforts to encourage carbon efficiency and 
carbon reduction by businesses and residents. 
 

2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 That Cabinet adopts the Climate Change Strategy and agrees to a maintain a 

‘live’ action plan of projects to be delivered by the Council and its partners. 
 

3 Explanation 
 

3.1 In June 2019 the Council declared a climate change emergency and set itself five 
ambitious objectives: 
 
1. To reduce carbon emissions from our own estate and operations to net zero 

by 2030, or a justification for a later date if the review finds this 
unachievable. 
 

2. To comply with statutory obligations to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change. 

 
3. To work with, support, encourage and engage residents, communities, 

businesses and other partners in initiatives to reduce carbon emissions. 
 
4. To embed climate change mitigation and adaptation into our plans, 

strategies and policies. 
 

5. To reduce carbon emissions across the borough by promoting energy 
efficiency measures, sustainable construction, renewable energy, 
sustainable transport and behavioural change. 

 
3.2 The Council has created a cross-party Climate Change Member Panel to debate 

climate change issues, to guide the preparation and delivery of actions and to 
ensure that the Council achieves the objectives set out above. 
 

3.3 The Council has consulted on a draft Climate Change Strategy which sets out 
the international agreements, national strategies and local strategies and 
partnerships that will guide the climate change agenda, identifies the baseline 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



carbon dioxide emissions position for Welwyn Hatfield and for the Council and 
then identifies actions that the Council is already taking and will take over the 
coming weeks, months and years to help tackle climate change.   
 

3.4 The baseline position is that Welwyn Hatfield emitted 629,000 tonnes of carbon 
from industrial, commercial, domestic and transport activities in 2019; an average 
of 5 tonnes per person, which is identical to the county average and slightly less 
than the UK average.  Emissions have been on a downward trend since 2005. 
 

3.5 A carbon footprint appraisal report has calculated that the Council’s buildings, 
services and transport activities emitted 2,507 tonnes of carbon in 2019/2020. 
 

3.6 A Treeconomics report reveals that the Council’s tree stock of 100,000 woodland 
trees and 17,000 of street trees annual sequester about 2,400 tonnes of carbon 
and annually remove 31 tonnes of pollution from the ground and air. 
 

3.7 The Council hosted a virtual online ‘town hall’ event on 25 January 2021, so that 
interested parties could debate the actions in the draft strategy and help the 
Council to define the final version of the strategy and ongoing actions.  The event 
raised a variety of interesting issues, including, but in no particular order: the 
need for a carrot and stick approach, encourage less travelling, agile working, 
more pedestrian and cycle routes, convert leisure cycling into commuter cycling, 
tree planting, increase canopy cover, convert mown grass to woodland, electric 
bikes, a review of car parking standards, encourage council house tenants to use 
renewable energy suppliers, promote green spaces through social media, plant 
different trees to attract different animals and insects, cycle proficiency lessons 
for children, safe parking spaces near schools for drop-off, meadow planting, 
eco-school curriculum, recognise value of other habitats beyond trees, purchase 
renewable energy, more electric buses, wildflower meadows on road verges, 
prioritise bus use, transfer from gas boilers to air source heat pumps, step 
change in individual behaviour, Council to act as community leader, 
communication and education programme. 
 

3.8 The Council has £150,000 allocated for the climate change agenda up to 
2020/21 which has been set aside in an earmarked reserve to utilise as projects 
are identified and approved.  Approved commitments from this reserve includes 
£50,000 for a project to help local businesses to improve the energy efficiency 
and carbon emissions of their premises and activities and £13,000 to install 
electric vehicle charging points in council-owned car parks. 
 

3.9 The Council has received 20 responses to the public consultation, which are set 
out in full in Appendix 3, summarised below and have been incorporated into the 
final Strategy, although often in general rather than as explicit actions.  This is 
because it is considered that the Council should start delivering the strategy by 
unapologetically prioritising actions which are likely to result in the greatest 
carbon reduction for the least cost.  There is a risk of diluting early effort by 
attempting to do too many things at once.  It is recommended that Members and 
officers return to this list and expand the action plan once the priority actions 
have been achieved.  For information, black text is a summary of the response 
and blue text explains how the comments have been incorporated into the 
strategy. 
 
 Thames Water support proposals to reduce water usage and promote 

sustainable drainage, to help minimise flooding risks.  They recommend a 
standard planning condition on water efficiency to accord with building 

Page 4



regulations to not exceed 110 litres per person per day.  This is a policy in 
the Submitted Local Plan and acknowledged in the Action Plan. 

 

 Herts County Council question whether the strategy goes far enough to 
tackle the scale of the emergency.  There is scope to set more ambitious 
targets.  It should be recognised that actions can have wider social and 
economic benefits.  It then goes on to list a wide range of actions that the 
Council could undertake to further tackle climate change.  The Strategy has 
incorporated many of these suggestions. 

 
 The Forestry Commission highlights the carbon value of trees, grants 

available to local authorities to plant new woodlands and the value of home 
grown timber for the construction industry.  The Action Plan highlights the 
carbon value of trees and makes reference to a countywide Off-Site 
Manufacturing project which includes scope for home grown timber. 

 

 The Woodland Trust asserts that trees and woodland can play a key role in 
tackling the climate change and biodiversity emergency.  They encourage 
additional tree planting, a 30% target for borough-wide canopy cover and 
three new trees for every one street tree removed.  The Action Plan 
includes projects for additional tree planting, subject to land being identified. 

 

 Herts & Middlesex Wildlife Trust recommend that the strategy should 
underline the importance of the natural environment to the local economy, 
draw links between a healthy natural environment and health and wellbeing, 
reference the Herts State of Nature Report, strengthen the biodiversity net 
gain policy in the local plan, tougher targets for land managed for wildlife, 
more biodiversity features on council houses, reduce water consumption in 
council buildings and do more to protect water habitats and water quality.  
The State of Nature report is now mentioned in the strategy.  The action 
plan states that biodiversity net gain will be implemented once the 
Environment Bill is enacted.   

 

 The Gardens Trust supports policies for waste water recycling, SUDs and 
green infrastructure.  Such issues should consider the heritage associated 
with historic parks and gardens in the borough.  They also recommend 
more work on a robust, fit-for-purpose green corridor through the borough.  
Policies for these issues appear in the Submitted Local Plan and are sought 
through the planning application process. 

 

 CPRE Hertfordshire recommend that the Council should aim for net zero as 
soon as possible, place more value on the countryside and align land use 
planning and transport strategies.  The introduction should re-emphasise 
the urgency of the situation and a chart showing future projected scenarios.  
The strategy should recognise the carbon impact of building new homes, 
the need to reduce emissions from existing homes, targets for walkable 
neighbourhoods, more green space to offset small homes, reduce car 
dependency, decarbonise travel options such as zero emission vehicles, 
the recycling of brown and grey land, policy tools such as parking charges, 
road charging and road space allocation, review by the Carbon Trust, an 
emphasis on air source heat pumps rather than new gas boilers in council 
homes and carbon literacy training for councillors and officers.  The strategy 
sets a target for net zero by 2030, which is ambitious given the scale of the 
task ahead. 

 

Page 5



 Groundwork supports more efforts to encourage behavioural change and a 
scaling-up of communication, awareness and education, which they could 
help to deliver.  The strategy references efforts to encourage behaviour 
change, communication, education and awareness. 

 

 Cuffley Parish Council recommends that parish councils should adopt the 
same objectives and work in partnership with the Council.  They also 
recommend a borough wide forum to coordinate actions and projects.  The 
action plan includes an intent to host future community meetings and 
events. 

 

 David Lock Associates on behalf of Tarmac Ltd endorse the strategy’s 
aspirations and highlight how their proposal for Birchall Garden Suburb will 
achieve many of these objectives.  Development at Birchall Garden Suburb 
is proposed in the Submitted Local Plan and will be complemented by a 
masterplan process once the site is allocated. 

 

 A borough councillor encourages more urgency, more national action, more 
detailed local plan policies, tighter standards for homes, improving the EPC 
rating of all homes in the borough, all borough vehicles should be electric, 
more training for councillors and officers, collaboration with the University of 
Hertfordshire and others to develop new ideas, more waste recycling, 
weekly articles in TeamTalk, solar power generation projects, changing to a 
renewable energy supply, wildflower meadow planting, more solar panels 
on council house roofs and pilots for air source heat pumps.  Urgency is 
now mentioned in the strategy introduction.  The Submitted Local Plan 
contains many sustainability policies, which can be superseded as new 
national policies are enacted.  The action plan priorities renewable energy 
supply for council buildings. 

 

 A borough councillor (as administrator for Ludwick Family Centre) 
comments on Herts County Council pension fund, the merits of moving to a 
renewable energy supplier, the ability of a green corridor to protect existing 
features, an annual celebration of trees, the merits of ground source heat 
pumps and other alternatives to gas boilers, ambitious household recycling 
targets and the merits of wildflower meadows.  The action plan priorities 
renewable energy supply for council buildings. 

 

 A resident suggests more pavements and cycle paths of the same quality 
as roads.  The action plan now references the intent to prepare walking and 
cycling improvement plans for Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield.   
 

 A resident advocates a leadership role for the Council to explain what steps 
ordinary residents can take to reduce the carbon emissions of their homes.  
The strategy references efforts to encourage behaviour change, 
communication, education and awareness. 

 

 A resident recommends adequate recycling facilities for existing and new 
flats.  Many bins are overflowing which leads to flytipping.  The Submitted 
Local Plan contain policies to secure recycling facilities in all housing 
schemes. 

 

 A resident thinks more can be done via local plan policies such as stating 
the most desirable sustainability technologies for developers to use and 
coherent plans for walking and cycling.  The Submitted Local Plan includes 

Page 6



sustainability policies, which can be superseded as new national policies 
are enacted. 

 

 A resident supports the move to webcasting of Council meetings and 
electronic papers and wishes to see this continue and expand to more 
meetings.  The Council will continue to webcast meetings and rely on 
electronic papers. 

 

 A resident recommends more information on baseline data such as water 
usage per person, where wildflower meadows will be planted, the Hatfield 
Living Lab project, the collection of small electrical items, recycling rates, 
campaigns for fighting fast fashion, use of recycling banks, reference to 
hedges and good practice from other Councils.  The emergency of the 
situation should be conveyed more.  The Council should also declare a 
biodiversity emergency.  The Council should encourage car clubs for 
residents.  There needs to be sufficient funding to tackle all of these issues.  
The focus should be national and local government action not an emphasis 
on resident behavioural change.  The Council will continue to collect and 
refine baseline data.  Urgency is now mentioned in the strategy introduction.  
The strategy references efforts to encourage behaviour change, 
communication, education and awareness. 

 

 A resident describes the strategy as ‘embryonic’ and recommends more 
metrics, benchmarking, a decisive action plan, exemplar activity by the 
Council, more efficient council meetings, favour holistic solutions, the value 
of tree planting, environmentally friendly flower planting, value bird life and 
pollinators, better management of council-owned woodlands, more 
biodiversity, restrict council car parking spaces, more electric charge points, 
more free-to-use bikes, better construction standards, green energy supply, 
use of solar panels, more activity to resolve fly-tipping, carbon reduction first 
then carbon offsetting.  The Strategy has incorporated many of these 
suggestions.  The Council will continue to collect and refine baseline data.   

 

 A resident considers that the strategy contains disconnected information.  It 
contains too many “the Council will…” and not enough actions.  It should 
make clear what the £150,000 will be spent on.  There should be more 
guidance for solar panels in Welwyn Garden City.  The Council should 
attempt to reduce fly-tipping around the borough.  More meetings should be 
online.  The action plan identifies practical projects that will be delivered 
over the coming weeks, months and years. 

 
3.10 The Council has also received climate change responses to its recent Vision 

consultation exercise to inform its new Corporate Plan.  These include requests 
for quicker action, more recycling bins, double glazing for council houses, locally 
produced food in supermarkets, less grass cutting to allow wildflowers and 
insects, tackle fly tipping, solar panels and other sustainability features on new 
houses and new car parking standards, while some others dismissed the threat 
of climate change and requested that public money be spent on other issues. 

 

3.11 The Strategy also identifies a limited list of actions that are judged to make the 
greatest contribution to climate change in terms of carbon reduction, cost and 
ability for the Council and its partners to achieve.  These are a renewable energy 
supply for council buildings, sustainable energy generation for council buildings 
and council houses, sustainable energy generation for privately owned houses 

Page 7



and business premises and an enhanced programme of tree planting wherever 
suitable land is available. 
 

4 Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The Council has a duty through various pieces of legislation to mitigate and 
adapt to climate change.  The Climate Change Act 2008 sets a legally binding 
target to reduce the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% by 2050 
against 1990 levels. 
 

5 Financial Implications 
 

5.1 The Council has allocated £150,000 to support climate change action, including 
£50,000 of grants to help local businesses become more energy efficient and 
£13,000 for electric vehicle charge points in council-owned car parks.   
 

5.2 The Strategy is likely to have other financial implications as the Council and its 
partners consider the cost/benefit of different actions to tackle climate change. 
 

6 Risk Management Implications 
 

6.1 There are no risk management implications associated with this report.  It is 
recognised however that there are long-term risk management implications 
associated with climate change, such as temperature, extreme weather events, 
flooding, air quality, etc. 
 

7 Security and Terrorism Implications 
 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications associated with this report.  It is 
recognised however that there may be long-term security implications associated 
with climate change, in terms of access to water, food, energy, etc. 
 

8 Procurement Implications 
 

8.1 There are a number of procurement initiatives which have also been incorporated 
into the Procurement and Commercial Strategy 2021-2025. 
 

9 Climate Change Implications 
 

9.1 The Council has declared a climate change emergency and set ambitious 
objectives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  It is considered that the 
recommendations of this report will have positive climate change implications, by 
adopting a strategy and agreeing a live action plan of projects that will be 
delivered by the Council and its partners to help tackle climate change. 
 

10 Human Resources Implications 
 

10.1 The actions set out in the Climate Change Strategy will be delivered by officers, 
Members and partners as part of their day-to-day duties. 
 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 

11.1 There are health and wellbeing implications associated with tackling the climate 
change agenda, particularly in respect of issues such as pollution and air quality. 
 

Page 8



12 Communications and Engagement Implications 
 

12.1 The draft Climate Change Strategy was made available for public consultation in 
November 2020 until 5 February 2021.  The Council help a virtual town hall event 
on 25 January 2021 to discuss the draft strategy with interested parties and seek 
feedback on options to help tackle the challenge.  The Council sought to engage 
residents and businesses during this period via social media messaging. 
 

12.2 The Council will continue to communicate with residents and businesses to help 
deliver climate change actions and to educate people on what they can do to 
help. 
 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 
 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to all five priorities of the Council’s Business 
Plan 2018-2021: Our Community, Our Environment, Our Housing, Our Economy 
and Our Council. 
 

14 Equalities and Diversity 
 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies.  All of the policies in the Submitted Local Plan have been subject to 
equality impact assessment. 
 

Name of author Colin Haigh 
Title Head of Planning 
Date February 2021 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Final Climate Change Strategy 

 
2. Action Plan 

 
3. Consultee comments 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Change Strategy 
 

 
Annual global temperatures 1850-2017 (scale change of 1.35oC) 

 

 
Central England 1772-2017 (scale from blue 7.6oC to red 10.8oC) 

 
This strategy will be regularly updated to reflect new evidence, legislation, 
strategies and policies and a live list of actions to tackle climate change. 
 
Introduction 
 
Climate change refers to the large-scale and long-term shifts being observed 
in our planet’s average temperatures and weather patterns. 
 
For the last 11,000 years the average temperature across the world has been 
about 14oC.  The industrial revolution began in the mid 1800s when humans 
started burning coal, oil and gas.  This produces greenhouse gases such as 
carbon dioxide that form a ‘blanket’ in the atmosphere that traps heat from the 
sun and causes global warming.  It has increased the average temperature of 
the planet by about 1oC.  It is also responsible for extreme weather patterns, 
melting ice caps, rising sea levels, flooding, droughts and fragile ecosystems.  
Although it is very difficult to predict, scientists estimate that the planet could 
warm by 4oC by 2100 if we continue at the current pace.   
 
The possible local implications for Welwyn Hatfield include heat, drought, 
flooding, impact on ecosystems and biodiversity, water supply, river quality, 
soil quality, agriculture, air pollution, pests, diseases and invasive species. 
 
The UK Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) is unequivocal 
that “climate change is real and human activities are the main cause.” 
 

Page 11

https://www.ipcc.ch/
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&ved=2ahUKEwicvrKEjNDjAhUBxIUKHXgYAUQQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.climate-lab-book.ac.uk/2018/warming-stripes/&psig=AOvVaw3uDU5Dr3XCVzXuy3O6jro6&ust=1564144911701725


Scientists are increasingly warning of a ghasty future that threatens human 
survival and observe that “the scale of the threat to the biosphere and all its 
lifeforms is so great that it is difficult to grasp even for well-informed experts”.  
There is an urgency to recognise and respond to the scale of the problem. 
 
The purpose of this strategy is to introduce the concept of climate change and 
the various international agreements and national policies that exist to tackle 
it, before focusing on the practical things that the Council and its partners can 
do at a county and borough level: the “think global, act local” mantra. 
 
The Council declared a climate change emergency in June 2019 and set itself 
the ambitious target to be zero net carbon by 2030, or a justification for a later 
date if the review finds this unachievable. 
 
The Council has established a cross-party Climate Change Member Group.  
This group will meet on a regular basis to maintain its understanding of 
international agreements, national policies and local strategies and to identify 
actions that that can be delivered to help address the climate change crisis.   
 
International Agreements 
 
The Brundtland Report 1987 recognised the interdependence of development 
and the environment and sought to galvanise political effort to achieve more 
sustainable development, which it defined as “development that meets the 
needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to 
meet their own needs.” 
 
The Earth Summit in Rio de Janeiro in 1992 developed a set of sustainable 
development goals that have since been incorporated into many aspects of 
UK legislation. 
 

Page 12

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Our_Common_Future
https://sustainabledevelopment.un.org/milestones/unced


 
 
The Kyoto Protocol 1997 committed industrialised nations to limit and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions by an average of 5% below 1990 levels by 2012. 
 
The Paris Agreement 2015 achieved a common cause for all nations to keep 
the rise in average global temperature well below 2oC and ideally below 1.5oC 
above pre-industrial levels.  It warns that this will require rapid, far-reaching 
and unprecedented changes to all aspects of life, but can also help to create 
a more sustainable and equitable society. 
 
The European Green Deal aims to transform the continent into a low carbon 
economy, through regulation and legislation, ambitious targets, budgeting,  
 
The High Ambition Coalition of 50 countries, including the UK, has committed 
to protect almost one-third of the planet by 2030 to halt the destruction of the 
natural world and slow the extinction rate. 
 
It is perhaps however the words and actions of Greta Thunberg and Sir David 
Attenborough that better raise public consciousness. 
 
This section will be updated following the UN COP26 Climate Change 
Conference that will take place in Glasgow in November 2021. 
 
National Strategies 
 
The Climate Change Act 2008 established a legally binding target to reduce 
the UK’s greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% by 2050 against 1990 
levels.  It also requires the Government to set binding five-year carbon 
budgets based on latest scientific knowledge and economic circumstances. 
 

Page 13

https://unfccc.int/kyoto_protocol
https://unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/the-paris-agreement/what-is-the-paris-agreement
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/27/contents
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https://www.unilever.com/sustainable-living/our-strategy/un-sustainable-development-goals/&psig=AOvVaw2D-3qlevYCxaxPj8rBJsfj&ust=1589280004431000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCPDercPPq-kCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAD


The Prime Minister has clarified that the UK will aim to cut greenhouse gas 
emissions further and faster than any other major economy – by 68% in 
annual carbon emissions by 2030 compared with 1990 levels.  This will be 
submitted as part of the UK’s pledge to the Paris climate change agreement. 
 
In 2019 the UK became the first national government to declare a climate 
change emergency. 
 
The UK Committee on Climate Change has been established to advise the 
UK government on emission targets and to report progress in achieving them.   
 
The latest CCC progress report states that territorial emissions have reduced 
by 30% and emissions embedded in imports have fallen by 18% since 2008.  
The report identifies a number of clear investment priorities for green and 
resilient recovery from coronavirus, including: low carbon retrofits; buildings 
that are fit for the future; tree planting; green infrastructure; energy networks; 
walking and cycling infrastructure; and a circular economy.   
 
The latest CCC risk assessment of the current and predicted impacts of 
climate change include: flooding and coastal change; high temperatures 
harming health, wellbeing and productivity; water shortages for agriculture, 
energy and industry; risks to ecosystems, soil and biodiversity; risks to food 
production; and new pests, diseases and invasive species. 
 
The Government has issued a 10 point plan to tackle climate change and 
deliver a green industrial revolution.  It intends that this will mobilise £12 
billion of investment to create up to 250,000 jobs and spur much greater 
levels of private sector investment. 
 
 Offshore wind: Producing enough offshore wind to power every home, 

quadrupling how much we produce to 40GW by 2030, supporting up to 
60,000 jobs. 

 
 Hydrogen: Working with industry aiming to generate 5GW of low carbon 

hydrogen production capacity by 2030 for industry, transport, power and 
homes, and aiming to develop the first town heated entirely by hydrogen 
by the end of the decade. 

 
 Nuclear: Advancing nuclear as a clean energy source, across large scale 

nuclear and developing the next generation of small and advanced 
reactors, which could support 10,000 jobs. 

 
 Electric vehicles: Backing our world-leading car manufacturing bases 

including in the West Midlands, North East and North Wales to 

Page 14

https://www.theccc.org.uk/
https://www.theccc.org.uk/publication/reducing-uk-emissions-2020-progress-report-to-parliament/
https://www.theccc.org.uk/publications/third-uk-climate-change-risk-assessment/


accelerate the transition to electric vehicles, and transforming our 
national infrastructure to better support electric vehicles. 

 
 Public transport, cycling and walking: Making cycling and walking more 

attractive ways to travel and investing in zero-emission public transport 
of the future. 

 
 Jet Zero and greener maritime: Supporting difficult-to-decarbonise 

industries to become greener through research projects for zero-
emission planes and ships. 

 
 Homes and public buildings: Making our homes, schools and hospitals 

greener, warmer and more energy efficient, whilst creating 50,000 jobs 
by 2030, and a target to install 600,000 heat pumps every year by 2028. 

 
 Carbon capture: Becoming a world-leader in technology to capture and 

store harmful emissions away from the atmosphere, with a target to 
remove 10MT of carbon dioxide by 2030, equivalent to all emissions of 
the industrial Humber today. 

 
 Nature: Protecting and restoring our natural environment, planting 

30,000 hectares of trees every year, whilst creating and retaining 
thousands of jobs. 

 
 Innovation and finance: Developing the cutting-edge technologies 

needed to reach these new energy ambitions and make the City of 
London the global centre of green finance. 

 
As part of leaving the EU, the Government has indicated it will phase out £1.6 
billion of agricultural subsidies to UK farmers by 2028 and will start using the 
funds to restore wild habitats, create new woodlands, boost soil quality and 
cut pesticide use. 
 
The Government has consulted on legislation to prevent illegal deforestation 
in the supply chains of UK businesses and to require companies to know 
where the commodities they use have come from and comply with local laws.  
The Council will incorporate these policies into its own procurement strategy. 
 
The UK Climate Assembly draws together people from all walks of British life 
to debate climate change.  They have recently identified a series of actions 
including: more investment in low carbon trains and buses; an early shift to 
electric vehicles; a ban on heavily polluting vehicles; grants to buy low-carbon 
cars; more wind and solar energy; greater reliance on local food production; 
and a change in diet to reduce meat and dairy consumption. 
 

Page 15

https://www.climateassembly.uk/


The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the purpose of 
the planning system is to contribute to the economic, social and environment 
objectives of sustainable development.  Plans should take a pro-active 
approach to mitigating and adapting to climate change and policies should 
support measures to ensure the resilience of communities and infrastructure. 
 
The Planning White Paper proposes fundamental changes to the planning 
system, including to help create beautiful place that stand the test of time, 
protect and enhance our precious environment and support efforts to combat 
climate change and bring greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050. 
 
The Clean Growth Strategy sets out government proposals to decarbonise all 
sectors of the UK economy through the 2020s.  It includes policies to improve 
the energy productivity of businesses by at least 20% by 2030, make all 
homes Energy Performance Certificate Band C by 2035 and end the sale of 
conventional petrol and diesel vehicles by 2040.  For information, the energy 
performance of homes is based on a Standard Assessment Procedure.  A 
property achieving a C rating must score 69-80 points out a potential 100. 
 
The Green Future 25 Year Environmental Plan wants to help the natural 
world regain and retain good health.  It identifies ten goals to achieve: clean 
air; clean plentiful water; thriving plants and wildlife; reduced risk of harm from 
environmental hazards such as flooding; use resources more sustainably; 
enhance beauty and heritage; mitigate and adapt to climate change; minimise 
waste; mange exposure to chemicals; and enhance biosecurity. 
 
The Environment Bill proposes new regulations on air quality, water usage, 
waste disposal, resource management and biodiversity and a new Office of 
Environmental Protection.  Its signature policy is that new development 
should achieve at least 10% net biodiversity gain.  This will use a DEFRA 
metric to calculate the difference between the pre- and post- development 
biodiversity value of the site.  Gain can be achieved via on-site provision or 
off-site contributions and must be maintained for at least 30 years after the 
development is completed.   
 
The England Tree Strategy observes that trees capture 4% of UK carbon 
emissions and therefore proposes an ambitious tree planting programme to 
help achieve net zero emissions by 2050. 
 
The Future Homes Standard proposes changes to building regulations to 
uplift the energy performance of new homes.  It wants homes to be 75-80% 
more efficient by 2025 though features such as triple glazing, heat pumps, 
gas condensing boilers, waste water heat recovery, airtightness standards, 
floor/wall/roof fabric efficiency and photovoltaics. 
 

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/clean-growth-strategy
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/693158/25-year-environment-plan.pdf
https://services.parliament.uk/Bills/2019-21/environment.html
https://consult.defra.gov.uk/forestry/england-tree-strategy/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-future-homes-standard-changes-to-part-l-and-part-f-of-the-building-regulations-for-new-dwellings


It is also important to note that the Health Protection Agency has identified a 
series of health effects arising from climate change, including temperature, air 
pollution, aero-allergens, ultraviolet radiation, flooding and diseases affecting 
humans, agriculture and animals. 
 
The Government is banning gas boilers in new houses from 2025. 
 
The Government is banning the sale of petrol and diesel cars by 2030. 
 
Grants and Funding 
 
The Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme provides grants for public sector 
bodies to fund energy efficiency and heat decarbonisation measures.  The 
Council has submitted bids for funding for the replacement of gas-fired boilers 
at Campus East, Campus West and Hatfield swim centre with air source heat 
pumps and water source heat pumps that will reduce emissions by two-thirds. 
 
The Green Homes Grant is available to local authorities, homeowners and 
landlords to apply for grants for energy efficiency improvements.  Vouchers 
cover two-thirds of the cost of eligible improvements up to a maximum of 
£5,000 and up to £10,000 for households receiving certain benefits. 
 
The Government has announced £20 million of funding for local authorities to 
boost the number of on-street electric vehicle charge points in their areas. 
 
The Woodland Carbon Fund supports the planting of productive, multi-
purpose woodlands of more than 5 hectares to help store carbon. 
 
The Woodland Carbon Guarantee offers payments for carbon sequestration 
to landowners who plant new woodlands. 
 
Local Strategies and Partnerships 
 
The Hertfordshire Forward partnership of public, private and voluntary bodies 
sets five priorities, including healthy citizens and high quality environment. 
 
The Hertfordshire Growth Board proposition has three themes to create a 
long-term infrastructure partnership, growth delivery programme and place 
narrative and six policy programmes, including to tackle climate change and 
ensure the benefits of growth are shared through community wealth building. 
 
The Hertfordshire Climate Change and Sustainability Partnership brings 
together public, private and voluntary partners to develop countywide policies 
and actions.  It has four sub-groups focused on carbon reduction, biodiversity, 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/health-protection-agency
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-decarbonisation-scheme-psds
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-for-the-green-homes-grant-scheme
Local%20authorities%20are%20being%20urged%20to%20take%20advantage%20of%20a%20£20%20million%20cash%20injection%20to%20boost%20the%20number%20of%20on-street%20electric%20vehicle%20chargepoints%20in%20towns%20and%20cities%20across%20the%20UK.
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/woodland-carbon-fund
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/woodland-carbon-guarantee
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/partnerships/hertfordshire-forward/hertfordshire-forward.aspx
https://www.hertfordshiregrowthboard.com/documents/
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/Recycling-waste-and-environment/Green-issues/Green-Issues.aspx


water and transport.  It is anticipated the Council will need to work closely 
with this partnership in order to achieve its climate change ambitions. 
 
The Hertfordshire Infrastructure and Planning Partnership brings together 
public sector partners to develop countywide planning and infrastructure 
policies and actions. 
 
The Hertfordshire Waste Aware Partnership brings together public sector 
partners to develop countywide policies and actions for dealing with waste.  
Its Municipal Waste Management Strategy prioritises reuse and sets a target 
for 50% recycling, which has consistently been achieved in recent years.  
When combined with composting and energy generation, only 15 tonnes out 
of every 100 tonnes produced by the county’s households goes to landfill. 
 
The Submitted Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan sets a target to build 12,000 new 
homes and 116,000 sqm of new employment floorspace over the next 15 
years.  It contains policies to control the sustainability of development, 
including higher densities around transport hubs, priority for pedestrians and 
cyclists, space for nature, protect and enhance environmental assets and 
sustainable construction principles for materials, waste, water and energy.   
 
The Hertfordshire Local Transport Plan recognises that our dependence on 
cars and driving is having serious environmental consequences and that the 
future strategy cannot be to build more roads.  It therefore focuses its policies 
and resources on getting more people to walk, cycle and use public transport 
as well as better technology to reduce vehicle congestion and pollution. 
 
The Hertfordshire Intalink Partnership brings together public sector partners 
and rail and bus operators to promote passenger transport services as an 
integrated network and to provide coordinated information on services. 
 
The Welwyn Hatfield Parking Strategy includes support for electric vehicle 
charging points in both council and privately-owned car parks. 
 
The Hertfordshire Local Flood Risk Management Strategy seeks to 
understand flood risk from surface water, watercourses and groundwater 
sources and identify actions that will be taken to manage it.  For Welwyn 
Hatfield it identifies that about 6,000 properties are a 1-in-100 medium risk 
and about 2,500 properties are a 1-in-30 high risk by virtue of lying within a 
modelled flood zone. 
 
The Welwyn Hatfield Corporate Plan will set out the Council’s projects and 
targets over the coming three years, to help deliver services. 
 

Page 18

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/recycling-waste-and-environment/recycling-and-waste/about-wasteaware/about-wasteaware.aspx#:~:text=WasteAware%20is%20the%20partnership%20of,meeting%20documents%20and%20annual%20report.
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/recycling-waste-and-environment/recycling-and-waste/about-wasteaware/our-wasteaware-strategy.aspx
https://welhat.gov.uk/local-plan/new/examination/submission-documents
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/recycling-waste-and-environment/planning-in-hertfordshire/transport-planning/local-transport-plan.aspx
https://www.intalink.org.uk/new-era-hertfordshire-bus-network
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/recycling-waste-and-environment/water/managing-flood-risks.aspx
https://www.welhat.gov.uk/about/reports-strategies-plans-performance/plans


The Hertfordshire State of Nature Report explores the county’s wildlife over 
the past 50 years.  It observes that “nature is a vital part of our physical and 
mental wellbeing and creating a wilder Hertfordshire should be important for 
everyone”.  It identifies that 1,500 out of nearly 11,000 species recorded in 
the county are of conservation concern, that grasslands and heathlands are a 
particularly threatened habitat, that some wetlands are fragile and that urban 
conservation is equally important. 
 
Coronavirus 
 
The world is currently in the grips of a coronavirus crisis that has brought 
death and illness, lockdowns, business closures, unemployment and massive 
subsidies for companies and workers.  It has forced many people to work at 
home, prevented them from travelling and limited opportunities for shopping 
and cultural activities.  It has however had the unintended consequence of 
reducing our greenhouse gas emissions.  It has also started conversations 
about the likelihood of wider societal change.  It gives us the opportunity to 
capture and embed some of these changes into our future behaviour. 
 
Strategy 
 
The Council declared a climate change emergency in 2019 and set itself five 
ambitious objectives: 
 
1. To reduce carbon emissions from our own estate and operations to net 

zero by 2030, or a justification for a later date if the review finds this 
unachievable. 
 

2. To comply with statutory obligations to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change. 
 

3. To work with, support, encourage and engage residents, communities, 
businesses and other partners in initiatives to reduce carbon emissions. 
 

4. To embed climate change mitigation and adaptation into our plans, 
strategies and policies. 
 

5. To reduce carbon emissions across the borough by promoting energy 
efficiency measures, sustainable construction, renewable energy, 
sustainable transport and behavioural change. 

 
Action Plan 
 

Page 19

https://www.hertswildlifetrust.org.uk/stateofnature


The action plan sets out existing actions that the Council is already 
undertaking and new actions that the Council and its partners will take to 
tackle climate change. 
 
It will be updated on a regular basis by the Climate Change Officer Group and 
reported to the Climate Change Member Group and Cabinet as appropriate. 
 
Each action has been assessed in terms of its carbon benefits (high, medium, 
low), its costs (cheap, medium, expensive) and the level of control (high, 
medium, low) that the Council or its partners have to make it happen.  This 
will help to prioritise our actions and to define appropriate timescales and 
milestones for their achievement. 
 
Baseline 
 
BEIS data for 2018 reveals that Welwyn Hatfield emitted 198,000 tonnes CO2 
from industrial and commercial activities, 164,000 tonnes CO2 from domestic 
activities and 267,000 tonnes CO2 from transport activities.  This equates to 
an average of 5 tonnes per person, identical to the county average and 
slightly less than the UK average.  The more important point is that emissions 
have been on a downward trend since 2005 and we want that this strategy to 
continue that trend. 
 

 
 

600.0 

650.0 

700.0 

750.0 

800.0 

850.0 

900.0 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

C
0

2
 e

m
is

si
o

n
s 

in
 k

ilo
to

n
n

es
 

Welwyn Hatfield total CO2 emissions 

Page 20

https://data.gov.uk/dataset/723c243d-2f1a-4d27-8b61-cdb93e5b10ff/emissions-of-carbon-dioxide-for-local-authority-areas


A Carbon Footprint Appraisal Report has calculated that the Council’s 
buildings, services and transport activities emitted 2,507 tonnes CO2 in 
2019/2020.  It includes Campus East, Campus West, Jim McDonald Centre, 
Mill Green Museum, Roman Baths, Coronation Fountain and Vineyard Barn, 
but does not include emissions from council housing. 
 

Activities Emissions 
tonnes CO2 

Direct:  

Electricity consumption at sites owned/operated by Council 829 

Gas consumption at sites owned/operated by Council 693 

Council-owned car and van travel 5 

Indirect:  

Greenwich Leisure Ltd sites 846 

Grey fleet: staff car travel for work purposes 55 

Electricity transmission and distribution 70 

Paper consumption 8 

Total 2,507 

 
A Treeconomics Report reveals that the Council manages a total tree stock of 
about 100,000 woodland trees and 16,900 street trees.  In total they store 
78,000 tonnes of carbon, annually sequester 2,400 tonnes of carbon and 
annually remove 31 tonnes of pollution from the ground and air. 
 
The Hertfordshire Waste Partnership Annual Report 2019/20 reveals that 
each household in the borough produced an average of 781 kg per year, of 
which 47% was recycled or composted. 
 
Hertfordshire Building Futures reveals that Hertfordshire is one of the driest 
counties in the country and that our residents use 8% more water than the 
national average.  The average unmetered usage is 170 litres per person per 
day, against the aspired target of 110 litres per person per day. 
 
The Hertfordshire State of Nature Report identifies that 1,500 out of nearly 
11,000 species recorded in the county are of conservation concern. 
 
It is clear from baseline information that the most significant action that the 
Council can take to reduce up to 94% of our carbon emissions is to reduce 
electricity and gas consumption in council buildings and GLL sites.  This can 
most easily be achieved by purchasing renewable energy and/or installing on-
site renewable energy systems.  On-site systems would save a further 3% 
from electricity transmission.  Using electric vehicles charged by renewable 
energy and encouraging staff to do the same would save 2%.  Achieving net 

Page 21

https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/recycling-waste-and-environment/recycling-and-waste/about-wasteaware/our-wasteaware-strategy.aspx
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/microsites/building-futures/a-sustainable-design-toolkit/technical-modules/water/water-facts.aspx#:~:text=The%20average%20unmetered%20usage%20of,litres%20per%20person%20per%20day.&text=Hertfordshire%27s%20population%20is%20expected%20to%20rise%20by%2012%25%20by%202035.
https://www.hertswildlifetrust.org.uk/stateofnature


zero carbon entirely through off-site actions would require the planting of 
about 125,000 trees. 
 
Residents can check their own carbon emission baseline for free using a 
footprint calculator such as www.carbonfootprint.com/calculator.   
 
Monitoring 
 
The Council will monitor the objective to be zero net carbon by 2030 by 
aiming for an average reduction of 250 tonnes (10%) per year, although this 
may vary on a year-by-year basis. 
 
The Council will use the Climate Change Officer Group and Climate Change 
Member Group to monitor and deliver actions. 
 
The Council will engage with the community on climate change issues. 
 
The Council will maintain an up-to-date understanding of international and 
national agreements, plans, strategies and other climate change information. 
 
The Council will use annual BEIS data to identify whether the borough has 
reduced its carbon emissions. 
 
The Council will carry out an annual appraisal of its own carbon emissions to 
check whether they have reduced and regularly audit this process to ensure 
we are using the correct data and methodology. 
 
The Council will monitor the rates of recycling achieved in fortnightly waste 
collections. 
 
The Council will monitor the use of energy and water in our own buildings. 
 
The Council will monitor the use of energy and water in council houses. 
 
The Council will monitor the use of paper and printing in our own buildings. 
 
The Council will monitor the hectarage of woodland and the number of street 
trees it plants and fells. 
 
The Council will monitor the borough’s biodiversity baseline. 
 
The Council will monitor the success of the Environment Bill’s biodiversity net 
gain policy once it is enacted. 
 

Page 22

http://www.carbonfootprint.com/calculator


WHBC Climate Change Strategy Action Plan

Version: February 2021

The action plan sets out actions that the Council and its partners will take to tackle climate change.  

It will be updated on a regular basis by the Officer Group and reported to the Member Group.

Action Carbon reduction Likely cost Level of control Timescale Team / Officer Comments

Funding actions

£150,000 allocated for 2020/21 and 2021/22 to spend on climate change actions High 2020/21 and 2021/22 Head of Planning

Of which £50,000 earmarked for Eastern New Energy project to help businesses become more energy efficient High Medium <£100k High 2020/21 and 2021/22 Economic Development Officer

Of which £13,000 earmarked for 16 electric vehicle charge points in council-owned car parks Medium Low <£25k High 2021 Parking Services Electric Blue project using 100% recycled energy

Of which £4,000 earmarked for membership of Herts Climate Change and Sustainability Partnership (HCCSP) Low Low <£25k High Ongoing Head of Planning

Of which £2,500 earmarked for biodiversity baseline study Low Low <£25k High 2021 Head of Planning

Governance actions

Existing actions:

Procurement Strategy that considers social, economic, environmental and climate change issues Adopted Procurement Manager

Contractors and consultants to demonstrate their climate change credentials Ongoing Procurement Manager

Council purchases 100% recycled paper for printers Ongoing Premises team

Recycling bins throughout council offices Ongoing Premises team

Council has phased-out disposable coffee cups Ongoing Premises team

Council has Extreme Weather Plan for both hot and cold weather scenarios Adopted Risk & Resilience Manager

Councillors use tablets and Officers use laptops for most council meetings rather than printing papers Ongoing Client & Governance Services

Council is member of Recycling Advisory Committee advising DEFRA on waste strategy to improve recycling rates Ongoing Head of Environment

All committee reports include section on climate change implications Ongoing Governance Services

New actions:

Climate Change Officer Group to identify, agree and deliver actions Low Low <£25k High Ongoing Head of Planning Frequency to align with Member Group

Climate Change Member Group to identify, agree and deliver actions Low Low <£25k High Ongoing Councillors Frequency to be debated with Member Group

Carbon Literacy Training for councillors and officers Low Low <£25k High Spring 2021 Head of Planning Trial on 25 Jan.  Event for all cllrs 10 Feb.  Officer event later in Feb or March.

Engagement with community to help identify and deliver actions Low Low <£25k Medium Regular activities Head of Planning Frequency to be debated with Member Group.

Council to be active member of Herts Climate Change and Sustainability Partnership (HCCSP) Low Low <£25k High Monthly Head of Planning £4,000 per year to progress joint actions and learning

Auditing of climate change function and emissions data Low Medium <£100k High Regular audit SIAS Necessary frequency to be debated with SIAS

Implement agile working arrangements for council staff Medium Low <£25k High After covid CMT Once staff return to office post-covid

Continue to webcast all committee meetings Medium Low <£25k High Ongoing Governance Services Council to decide which meetings should continue to be webcast.

Council to explore merits of joining UK100 network of local government leaders who have pledged to reduce carbon emissions Low Low <£25k Medium Spring 2021 Leader of the Council Free to become member.  Needs to be signed by Leader.

Council Buildings actions

Existing actions:

Promote Building Research Establishment (BRE) Home Quality Mark Ongoing Planning

New Hatfield Commons multi-storey car park designed with low energy features and electric vehicle charge points Currently being built Development team

New actions:

Move electricity supply for Council and GLL buildings to green tariff High Low <£25k High February 2021 Procurement Manger Indicatively £2,200 extra per year for green electricity.

Review scope to upgrade insulation of council operational buildings High High >£100k High Ongoing Building Services Being investigated by Estates team and building services team. 

Bids to Government Decarbonisation Scheme at Campus East, Campus West and Hatfield Swim Centre High Low <£25k Medium Spring 2021 Service Manager (Building Services) Replace gas boilers with air/water source heat pumps and solar panels

Council to identify future corporate developments that could incorproate BRE Home Quality Mark High Medium <£100k High Spring 2021 Development & Housing teams

Planning actions

Existing actions:

Submitted Local Plan spatial vision seeks to play its part in addressing climate change Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to achieve sustainable design and construction principles Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to achieve BREEAM excellent standard for non-residential buildings Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies have been subject to sustainability appraisal and habitats assessment Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies have been subject to viability assessment, to ensure developers can afford them Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Future planning applications will be considered in terms of their sustainability and climate change issues Ongoing Development Management

Council is member of Herts Building Futures initiative to promote sustainable development Ongoing Planning Policy team

New actions:

Council will prepare masterplans for strategic development sites including climate change aspirations High Medium <£100k High Once Local Plan adopted Planning Policy To be done once Local Plan is adopted.

Council will respond positively to Government consultations that achieve higher climate change standards Low Low <£25k High Ongoing Planning Policy As and when.

Council is part of a Herts Off-Site Manufacturing project to improve the sustainability of new development High Medium <£100k Medium 2021 Head of Planning

Council will explore merits of becoming a Hydrogen Town High High >£100k Medium Spring 2021 Head of Planning

Environment and Biodiversity actions

Existing actions:

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to protect countryside, open spaces, parks, green spaces, etc Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to protect and enhance borough's critical environmental assets Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to create and enhance strategic green infrastructure links across the borough Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies seek to protect and enhance biodiversity assets and ecological networks Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Council will maintain up-to-date management plans for our largest woodlands and open spaces Ongoing Landscape

Council will continue to work with volunteer groups to manage woodlands, trees and open spaces Ongoing Landscape

Council will continue to purchase ecological advice from Herts CC to inform Local Plan policies and planning decisions Ongoing Development Management

Council will maintain up-to-date Tree Strategy to guide management of woodlands and street trees Ongoing Landscape

P
age 23



Council will continue to plant 300 street trees per year 2021 planting season Landscape

Tree Officers attend Herts Tree Health Network to monitor pests and diseases Ongoing Landscape

Council will continue to plant flowers in key town centre locations and wildflower meadows along key roads 2021 planting season Head of Environment

Council will continue to manage and let stock of allotment plots Ongoing Landscape

Council will seek provision of new allotment plots as part of strategic development sites Once Local Plan adopted Planning

New actions:

Council will be part of and contribute to HCCSP biodiversity baseline study Low Low <£25k High Ongoing Head of Planning £2,500

Council will be part of and contribute to preparation of Herts Green Infrastructure Strategy High Low <£25k Medium 2021 Head of Planning Project has been tendered.

Implement biodiversity net gain policy once Environment Bill is enacted High Low <£25k High Awaiting enactment Head of Planning

Council will consider opportunities to plant 'tiny forests' in urban areas Medium Medium <£100k High 2021 planting season Landscape

Council will explore opportunities for additional tree planting around the borough High Low <£25k High 2021 planting season Landscape

Council will explore merits of purchasing of land for new tree planting High High >£100k High Ongoing Estates

Transport actions

Existing actions:

Council is working with Herts County Council to implement policies in Local Transport Plan and other transport plans Ongoing Head of Planning

Submitted Local Plan policies seek provision for pedestrians, cyclists, public transport and electric vehicles Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Council will maintain Green Travel Plan for council buildings Ongoing Scope to update as part of agile working modernisation review

Council is active member of A414 Group investigating merits of mass rapid transit options Ongoing Head of Planning

Council is active member of Intalink Partnership to encourage greater bus patronage Ongoing Head of Planning

Council has applied for Government funding for new electric vehicle charge points in council-owned car parks 2021 Development team

Council is supporting Living Lab project to trial electric and driverless vehicles in Hatfield business park 2021 Head of Planning

Council has nominated Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield as sustainable travel towns for future investment projects 2021 Planning Policy

Council has reviewed car parking charges as part of budget setting process Done Parking Services

New actions:

Council to explore replacement of general vehicles and community buses with electric vehicles High Medium <£100k High TBC Procurement Manager Feasible as vehicles need replacing

Council will continue to install electric vehicle car points at key locations around the borough Medium Medium <£100k High Ongoing Head of Environment

Council will work with Herts County Council to prepare Walking and Cycling Improvement Plan for Welwyn Garden City High Medium <£100k Medium 2021 Planning Policy

Council will work with Herts County Council to prepare Walking and Cycling Improvement Plan for Hatfield High Medium <£100k Medium 2021 Planning Policy

Council Housing actions

Existing actions:

Council is seeking to replace 600 gas boilers per year in council houses Ongoing Housing Gas boilers banned in new homes from 2025.  Retrofit expensive.  Alternative heat source industry 

not yet geared-up for mass use.  Not yet enough skills within industry for installation and repairs.  

Industry requires massive investment before 2025.  Scope for alternative heat systems will continue 

to be explored as industry opportunities arise.
Council is seeking to replace 400 windows per year in council houses Ongoing Housing

Council is using EPC information to install cavity wall and loft insulation in council houses Ongoing Housing

Council is seeking to replace 200 pitched roofs per year in council houses Ongoing Housing

Council is seeking to replace 50 flat roofs per year in council houses Ongoing Housing

Council is seeking to install 600 solar panels in council houses Ongoing Housing

Council is upgrading communal lighting to LED movement detection lighting in all 560 council housing blocks Ongoing Housing

Council is installing air source heat pumps in council houses in remote areas Ongoing Housing

Council is using 'fabric first' approach in council houses, rather than mechanical or electrical systems Ongoing Housing

Council supports initiatives to improve the thermal efficiency of council homes Ongoing Housing

Council works with rented housing sector to ensure all homes have required EPC certification Ongoing Housing

New actions:

Council has made bid to Government's Green Homes Grant to improve EPC rating of 32 council houses Medium Medium <£100k High 2021 Housing

Council to investigate carbon emissions from council housing stock High Medium <£100k Medium 2021 Energy  Efficiency Officer 

Energy actions

Existing actions:

Council is member of Greater South East Energy Hub to support low-carbon economy Economic Development Officer

New actions:

Council is delivering Eastern New Energy project to help businesses improve the enery efficiency of their premises High Low <£25k High 2021 Economic Development Officer

Council to whether to let WGC EMS homes install solar panels and sustainability features without requiring permission Medium Low <£25k High Summer 2021 Estates Management Scheme Manager May harm values and amenities of WGC EMS area.

Water actions

Existing actions:

Submitted Local Plan policies state that new homes must achieve water comsumption of 110 litres per person per day Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Submitted Local Plan policies state that development should consider flood risk and surface water management Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Council works with Herts County Council to respond to localised flooding events Ongoing HCC and WHBC

New actions:

Council to investigate ways of reducing water consumption in council buildings Medium Medium <£100k High 2021 Energy Efficiency Officer

Council to investigate ways of reducing water consumption in council houses Medium Low <£25k Medium 2021 Housing By converting from unmetered to metered

HCCSP have prepared Water Action Plan Low TBC Medium 2021 Head of Planning

Waste actions

P
age 24



Existing actions:

Council provides fortnightly collections for general domestic waste Ongoing Environment

Council provides fortnightly collections for recycling Ongoing Environment

Council provides weekly collections of food waste, which is then used for energy and fertiliser Ongoing Environment

Council provides weekly collections of small electrical items Ongoing Environment

Council provides fortnightly collections of garden waste Ongoing Environment

Council has guidance on website to reduce and reuse waste Ongoing Environment

Council has target for 48% of household waste to be sent for reuse, recycling or composting 2021 Environment

Council is active member of Herts Waste Partnership Waste Aware Group and promotes its campaigns Ongoing Environment

Council provides recycling banks at convenient locations around the borough Ongoing Environment

Herts County Council operates several household waste recycling centres around the borough Ongoing Herts CC

Council attends school and fresher events to promote waste initiatives Ongoing Environment

New actions:

Council to review scope for electric waste vehicles in future as technology improves High High >£100k High TBC Environment Not feasible at the moment

Pollution actions

Existing actions:

Submitted Local Plan policies prevent development from having unacceptable on environment and human health Hearing sessions Planning Policy

Council has installed equipment to check air quality at sensitive locations around the borough Ongoing Public Protection

Council is member of Herts & Beds Air Pollution Alert Scheme, which sends alerts if air pollution is high Ongoing Public Protection

New actions:

Implement pollution-related responsibilities once Environment Bill is enacted TBC TBC TBC TBC Public Protection

Behaviour actions

Existing actions:

Regular communication of climate change actions via social media posts Ongoing Communications

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1: Climate Change Strategy consultation responses 

 
Thames Water 
 
The impacts of climate change are already being felt by Thames Water with more extreme 
weather events impacting on the supply of water and flooding events. Thames Water are 
therefore keen to support proposals which reduce the usage of water and which promote 
sustainable drainage to help minimise the risks of sewer flooding that can arise from 
severe storm events.  
 
Thames Water therefore support the water actions highlighted in the strategy. In relation to 
the water usage requirements of Policy SADM13 it should be noted that there is an 
interaction between the planning regime and the building regulations with the higher 
standard for water efficiency only being applicable where there is a planning condition.  
 
Paragraph 2.8 of Part G of the Building Regulations states:  
“The optional requirement only applies where a condition that the dwelling should meet the 
optional requirement is imposed as part of the process of granting planning permission. 
Where it applies, the estimated consumption of wholesome water calculated in accordance 
with the methodology in the water efficiency calculator, should not exceed 110 
litres/person/day.”  
 
In this context consideration should be considered to applying a standard condition on 
water efficiency to help ensure that the optional requirement in building regulations is 
applied to new development approved in the district.  

 
Hertfordshire County Council 

 
The county council welcomes the production of this Strategy and it being a live document 
that can be updated when needed online. It is anticipated that the final version is more 
structured by way of section/paragraph numbering for ease of following any updates that 
may be taken at a later stage. As a Strategy, it is the vision first and foremost that needs to 
stand out followed by the actions and a monitoring arrangement to assess specific impacts 
incorporating mitigation and adaptation. A clear structure assists in bringing out these 
aspects.  
 
Building on the declaration of the Climate Emergency by the Council the Strategy 
effectively sets the scene laid out in international, national and local law, policy and 
guidance, and begins to identify concrete action by which measurable and beneficial 
changes can be made to its own operations and by its duties.  
 
It is recognised that the production of this document marks a useful starting point of a 
wider strategy to be co-produced by the Borough Council with businesses and residents. 
However, we question whether it goes far enough. In other words, whether the range and 
scale of the actions proposed and the timeline for their implementation are proportionate to 
‘an emergency’. We recommend that its scope and range of measures is expanded to 
make the most of the good work completed so far.  
 

Page 27



International Agreements  
 
It is noted that this section does not mention the UN Climate Change Conference COP26 
that is to be held in Glasgow in November 2021, which may be useful for completeness.  
Local Strategies & Partnerships  
 
It is encouraging to see that Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is committed to working in 
partnership with other local authorities, businesses, organisations and residents to really 
make a difference. The county council is very keen to work with all of the District and 
Borough Councils in Hertfordshire regarding climate change and the promotion of 
sustainable development.  
 
The county council, as a member of the Hertfordshire Climate Change and Sustainability 
Partnership (HCCSP), together with District and Borough Councils will seek to develop 
countywide strategies to adapt to future climate change. For example, delivering a 
countywide air quality strategy to reduce pollution and improve local and regional air 
quality. Further examples would be working with HCCSP and local nature partnerships to 
map local and countywide green assets, developing adaptation actions to protect and 
enhance this natural capital, including green corridors across district and borough borders.  
 
It would be beneficial to note that the county council declared a climate change emergency 
in July 2019 and has prepared its own Sustainable Hertfordshire Strategy, seeking to 
engage widely regarding the vision and aims within the Strategy. Similar to Welwyn 
Hatfield’s Strategy, this relates not only to the council’s own functions and services but 
also recognises the council’s role as an advocate to inspire and influence others.  
There is a hope that as more council’s and public sector organisation (e.g. the LEP and 
NHS) in Hertfordshire produce similar strategies to this, there will be greater opportunities 
for partnership working and countywide delivery of climate change initiatives.  
 
It should be noted that there is a Tree Health Network to which Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council belongs and this could also be referenced. In terms of proposed text this could 
state ‘Hertfordshire has a Tree Health Network that Welwyn Hatfield Officers attend. This 
group works to address tree resilience in the face of diseases such as Ash Dieback and 
invasive and non-native pests as well (some of which are detrimental to human health –  
Oak Processionary Moth).’  
 
Coronavirus  
 
This section refers to the consequences of the pandemic mentioning first and foremost 
‘death and illness’ which could be considered to be slightly insensitive. Perhaps rewording 
of this sentence may be appropriate.  
Strategy - Objectives  
 
It is considered that the Council’s five objectives could be more ambitious. The first (net 
zero) from the Borough Council’s own evaluation is easily within reach based on the 
emissions put in scope and their already treed land holding. As a result we feel that 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council could set out to achieve more.  
 

Page 28



Baseline  
 
This section illustrates the climate issues with statistics. We wonder if there is a benefit to 
including some of the evidence of decline in native habitat and the wildlife it supports. This 
might include the loss of wildflower rich meadows, decline in water quality/flow in chalk 
rivers and increases in tree pests and diseases. These are all linked to Objectives set out 
later in the document.  
 
Action Plan  
 
The Strategy and corresponding Action Plan presents numerous actions the Borough 
Council will undertake to build a borough which is more resilient to future climates. 
Nevertheless, the Strategy does not clearly consider how each action adapts to and 
mitigates climate change and ensures resilience. For example, when using green 
infrastructure and nature-based solutions, such as trees and wildflower meadows, these 
should be planted to prevent flooding or provide shade for buildings and the flora should 
be indigenous and resilient to future climate change (e.g. drought). Furthermore, there are 
no clear measures within the action plan which address future climate risks and pressures 
for the Borough Council’s services and how they will adapt to and mitigate these, for 
example e.g. flooding, drought, etc.  
 
The Strategy concentrates mainly on the environmental issues relating to sustainability. 
We recommend that the Borough Council also considers the social aspects of 
sustainability. Climate change exacerbates inequalities and affects vulnerable 
communities far more; there is a clear link between the environment, quality of life and 
health.  
 
The current pandemic has shown us that support for vulnerable people and communities is 
very important. Any future iteration of this document would benefit from the recognition of 
the impacts on humans as well as the environment, community resilience, climate risk and 
responding to the impacts of unavoidable climate change through adaptation.  
 
The Strategy should sufficiently recognise the human pillar of sustainability – particularly 
inequality, health and quality of life. The Strategy should also include measures that are to 
be taken to ensure that health and social care systems will be resilient with the extra 
pressures they will come under due to climate change.  
 
It is not clear whether the Borough Council has identified groups who are most vulnerable 
to climate risks such as flooding, drought or air pollution and what actions are being taken 
to address this.  
 
At present, there is no mention of health and wellbeing or wider social aspects of climate 
change and it would be beneficial to at least acknowledge the link between the 
environment and health and wellbeing. The work undertaken by the Hertfordshire council’s 
(in their differing responsibilities and preparation of such strategies) identifies key areas 
which have the potential for positive health outcomes. If these were referenced, the 
strategy could be significantly strengthened and justified (e.g. promoting active travel to 
reduce emissions could also have significant health benefits; reducing housing stock 
emissions also has benefits for health outcomes and health inequalities from a housing 
quality, fuel poverty and cold homes perspective).  
 

Page 29



Planning Actions  
 
In considering this Strategy alongside other council documents, and the procedures in 
place for their development, there is no mention of any assessments/screening that have 
been carried out. Should these have been considered but are not required for such a 
document, it may be worthwhile mentioning these, such as any Strategic Environmental 
Assessment, Habitats Regulation Assessment or Equalities Impact Assessment.  
Environment Actions  
 
There is much to welcome in the Strategy with regard to the environment. The county 
council believes that it is imperative to ensure that the natural environment is resilient to 
climate change and that this should be stated.  
 
The Strategy references the Landscape Character Assessment 2002. However, it does not 
then go on to set out how this is used in planning or land management decisions, which 
would be beneficial.  
 
The Strategy includes frequent references to biodiversity, yet the reason for this is not 
made clear. The county council believes the Strategy would benefit from identifying not 
only the harm to biodiversity that will inevitably arise from climate change but the value our 
established semi-natural habitats provide in terms of carbon sequestration. Furthermore, it 
could usefully recognise the opportunities it provides to the Borough Council to deliver 
effective climate mitigation and adaptation measures.  
 
For instance, changes in temperature and rainfall, together with changes to the intensity 
and frequency of weather events can be confidently expected to exert a downward 
pressure on the health, distribution and composition of the many habitats and animal 
populations that make up the landscape of the authority’s area.  
 
In turn, the public goods that these provide including flood management, shade, 
pollination, contribution to wellbeing and, importantly, carbon sequestration will be 
diminished.  
 
By stating this clearly, the relevance of the development planning system will also become 
clear; the Strategy does not achieve this at present. In contrast, the Strategy appears to 
place great store in biodiversity net gain, yet effects on climate are not considered in the 
associated metric and so, at present, it can make little direct impact at the individual 
application scale. Perhaps the opportunity arises here for the Borough Council to require 
more of this tool to embrace climate change measures and help the Strategy achieve its 
objectives which again could benefit from being made more overt, refined and quantified.  
 
However, by drawing on the benefits that biodiversity provides, and which features provide 
the greatest payback, planning could also secure the protection of established semi-
natural features across the landscape. This would include woodlands, but should also 
include the wetlands, heaths and grasslands amongst others that are best reflected in the 
network of Local Wildlife Sites (but beyond this as well). Together, this would not only 
safeguard their biodiversity value but also their function as existing and future carbon 
stores and especially so if their future management was also secured.  
 
The importance of management could so usefully have been included in the section 
relating to the management of its key semi-natural assets. This could and perhaps should 

Page 30



be expanded to embrace not only the authority’s own landholdings but those it influences 
through, for example, the current planning system.  
 
Further positive changes could be secured by actively employing meaningful use of the 
mitigation hierarchy (strongly recommended as part of net gain but also in the NPPF etc) 
across the whole of the planning system. This demands that the least environmentally 
damaging options/locations are selected for development. Frequently, net gain can too 
easily be interpreted as encouraging their loss and subsequent compensation. It should be 
remembered that the retention and management of biodiversity and carbon stores is often 
far preferable than their loss and replacement.  
 
Indeed, this approach to climate adaptation measures highlights that the Strategy does not 
describe the Borough Council’s aspirations in these commonly used terms (except in its 
objectives). The county council requests that it does so.  
 
Returning to Net Gain, the Borough Council does refer to its proposed network of Green 
Corridors. Net Gain will require the establishment of a Nature Recovery Network (NRN). 
Whilst there may be overlap with the green corridors, their function will be different, yet 
both provide opportunities to embed management of the semi-natural environment for both 
biodiversity (required as part of the NRN) but also climate change measures – there will be 
clear synergies between both. Again, this relationship and opportunity could be made 
clearer. After all, these networks, if adequately resourced in the long-term will help deliver 
Welwyn Hatfield’s and the county council’s (sustainable) growth agendas.  
 
Elsewhere, as an example, tree-planting programmes (in the right place) can be beneficial 
but will need to be expanded if they are to make a meaningful difference. Whilst, as 
indicated before, the management of existing semi-natural habitats could be far more 
effective and efficient, the focus on trees draws the Strategy away from many of the other 
recommendations made in the references referred to. For instance, little is made of the 
need to educate and influence the population to shift to a vegetarian diet and the use of 
locally produced food to reduce carbon miles. Both could not only reduce carbon miles but 
help to sustain smallholdings and facilitate the types of land management so many of our 
Local Wildlife Sites depend on. There are many opportunities for synergies like this to be 
exploited that would also help the Borough Council deliver its biodiversity duties. With this 
in mind, we recommend the Borough Council considers declaring a Biodiversity 
Emergency to complement measures to combat climate change. A Nature Emergency has 
been established in recent reviews at a national (by Lawton) and local (Herts and 
Middlesex Wildlife Trust) level. The Defra 25 Year Environment Plan is key to addressing 
this and commits to improving the environment within a generation and leaving it in a 
better state than we found it.  
 
With regards to woodland management, the Strategy refers to woodland management 
plans which ‘include clearing and replanting young trees that capture more CO2 as they 
grow more rapidly than mature trees’. The county council does however question  
why the Borough Council is not relying on the natural regeneration of trees in woodland 
settings where holes in the canopy have been created. This would accord with guidance 
from the Forestry Commission and ensure that the woodlands benefitted from the local 
seed bed rather than risking the importation of pests and disease through the importation 
of planting stock. We would also advise that the purpose secured for the harvested wood 
and timber will have implications for the CO2 balance sheet. The authority will be aware 
that if locked up in construction or used as a replacement for non-sustainable fuel sources 
these products will have a greater positive impact in calculations.  

Page 31



 
In terms of proposed text for the Strategy, a Tree Resilience Strategy for Hertfordshire has 
been developed by the Tree Health Network. The county council considers that there 
should be an action to “adopt the Hertfordshire Tree Resilience and Recovery Strategy 
(TRRS) and develop a TRRS Action Plan for Welwyn Hatfield.”  
 
There could be scope for additional action to be taken also. The Borough Council is to be 
applauded for its target for street trees. We would propose that the Borough Council 
undertakes an audit to assess the opportunities for tree, hedge planting and changes in 
grounds maintenance to enable the development of wild flower meadows and other 
grassland habitats within the green infrastructure (green space) it owns. Changes in 
frequency of mowing and diversity of habitat type can lead to increased carbon capture as 
well as providing more wildlife rich habitats that are resilient to climate change. Achieving 
these changes might create opportunity for investment through biodiversity net gain off-site 
to developments.  
 
The Strategy states that ‘The Council will continue to use volunteer groups to help 
manage our trees, woodlands and open spaces’. The Borough Council has a well-
established track record for the engagement and support of volunteers contributing to the 
management of its largest woodlands. We would encourage the Borough Council 
celebrates this here and also, could replace the word “used” by either “support” or 
“engage” for a more positive read.  
 
With regard to monitoring, this is an important area but given the lack of quantified targets 
it is questioned how progress can be measured effectively? Elsewhere in this response we 
have attempted to stress the importance of the semi-natural environment as a means of 
delivering public goods such as climate change mitigation and adaptation. Consequently, 
simply monitoring tree planting does not, in our opinion, adequately capture the activities 
the Borough Council could/should be pursuing. Furthermore, the lack of quantified targets 
and timelines leaves open the question of how progress will be measured and whether it 
will be enough. Given the importance of the planning system as described in the Strategy, 
wouldn’t the area of semi-natural habitats both retained and managed be more telling? It is 
recommended that this section would benefit from further thought.  
 
The Strategy is an important first step towards a net zero carbon economy and lifestyle. 
However, it could, and perhaps should, aim for so much more. Herts Ecology would be 
able to help the Borough Council to achieve this and deliver a more diverse and resilient 
landscape for all to enjoy.  
 
Transport Actions  
 
It is envisaged that the actions would extend to any council owned/fleet vehicles, to ensure 
these are low emission vehicles, although there is no mention of this in the Strategy. In 
addition, in the council’s function as the Waste Collection Authority there could be 
comment made on the vehicles used to make waste collections.  
 

Page 32



This section does not mention any requirements on contractors which no doubt is an area 
that could be influenced.  
 
With regard to the green travel plan which is referenced to encourage sustainable travel to 
its offices, it is considered that the Strategy could detail how it is promoted to staff and 
visitors so as to make them aware of its existence and the travel options available to them 
as well as the implications of different travel options. This is something that would also 
need to be monitored and is not mentioned in the monitoring section of the Strategy.  
It is encouraging that the Council will work with Hertfordshire Highways to implement 
transport policies and actions in the Local Transport Plan and South and Central Growth 
and Transport Plan.  
 
In terms of Local Transport Plan 4 policy 1, this sets out the County Council’s desire to see 
a significant shift on mode towards active travel for short journeys. Rights of Way and 
green space present an opportunity for investment in the form of CIL/S106 in improving 
the condition for users of strategic utility routes.  
 
Further text is proposed such that when considering planning applications the Council will 
consult with HCC Rights of Way and pursue opportunities to enhance Public Rights of 
Way and create further non-motorised infrastructure to enable everyday active travel 
(walking and cycling). HCC has a specification guide for rights of way where they are to be 
improved for active travel use.  
 
Additional proposed text could include that the Council will support Hertfordshire 
Countryside & Rights of Way (HCC) to improve Rights of Way and the redundant railway 
lines (Cole Green Way and Alban Way) where these can better support active travel 
(cycling/ecycles, walking, scooting) as alternatives for every day, short journeys.  
 
The Strategy includes the statement as follows: “The Council will prepare a Welwyn 
Garden City Transport Strategy to improve traffic flows for private vehicles, public 
transport, taxis and walking and cycling links.” This statement could be considered to be 
creating the wrong impression by listing the private vehicle first and making it appear that 
facilitating travel by private vehicles is a priority as opposed to reducing it. Facilitating the 
use of private vehicles would only encourage greater use of private cars and would be 
contradictory to the Local Transport Plan 4. Whilst reducing idling time as a result of 
congestion can help air quality, this is not explained clearly in relation to this statement.  
 
In terms of helping to secure more funding for sustainable transport measures from 
Hertfordshire Highways, by nominating Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield as sustainable 
travel towns, it should be noted that whilst there may not be any specific funding from the 
Sustainable Travel Towns project itself, there may be opportunities linked to it and funding 
would need to come from other sources.  
Water Actions  
 
It is beneficial to include reference to working with HCC as the Lead Local Flood Authority 
and referencing the Flood Risk and Surface Water Management Policy within the 
Submitted Local Plan.  
 

Page 33



There does however need to be recognition that climate change allowances are not the 
same as climate change assessments for flood risk. A 40% uplift to flood figures can be 
dealt with by building bigger but not necessarily in a better and more integrated way eg. a 
different approach is taken to design with greater areas of blue green infrastructure, rain 
gardens etc which in themselves bring a wider range of climate change benefits (heat 
island control, shade).  
 
In the future it needs to take a more visionary and joined up approach to placemaking such 
as including blue green infrastructure which has benefits for sustainable water 
management and heat impacts.  
 
With regards to Natural Flood Management, this is the alteration, restoration or use of 
landscape features to reduce flood risk. It is considered that perhaps additional text may 
be helpful to state that when reviewing management plans for the Council’s significant 
woodlands and considering the management of other parks and greenspace assets the 
council will consider how natural flood management tools and techniques can be 
implemented to slow water flow and enhance biodiversity.  
 
Pollution Actions  
 
There is mention of public health concerns arising from climate change, air pollution and 
other issues within the Strategy. We have recommended several actions that might be 
adopted to address this. Covid 19 Pandemic has done much to highlight the wellbeing 
benefits that people derive from simply being and taking exercise in the natural 
environment. This Strategy could do more to identify how the Borough Council is 
specifically targeting this issue.  
 
Behavioural Actions  
 
The Strategy does not distinguish how it will encourage sustainable behaviours amongst 
different individuals. The Borough Council may want to outline how it will encourage 
behavioural change amongst its employees, councillors and residents, the latter requiring 
a more tailored approach. The Borough Council may also want to consider how it can 
inspire businesses to take climate action. It is encouraging to see that the Borough Council 
is looking to remove barriers which may prevent the uptake of sustainable behaviours. 
Another way forward would be to highlight the co-benefits of sustainability. For example, 
eating less meat will reduce carbon emissions, lower a person’s risk of heart disease, and 
save them money.  
 
I hope that these comments are helpful in response to the consultation and the next steps 
for the Strategy. The county council looks forward to working in partnership with you to 
progress countywide initiatives relating to this important area of work. 
 
Forestry Commission 

 
The UK forestry sector is in a unique position to provide guidance on two essential issues 
for inclusion in a Climate Change Strategy. Firstly, creating new woodland directly 
contributes to the reduction of atmospheric carbon dioxide and there are Woodland 
Carbon incentives for farmers, and Local Authorities. The details of the carbon guidance 
and incentives are as follows.   
  

Page 34



The Woodland Carbon Fund (WCF) supports the planting of productive, multi-purpose 
woodlands to store carbon that are larger than 5 hectares. The scheme offers capital 
funding for the creation of new woodland including the costs of tree planting and protection 
items including tree guards, fencing and gates Funding is also available to install forest 
roads and recreational infrastructure. 
 
If the woodland creation is not being used to directly offset emissions, landowners may 
wish to earn further income by selling carbon credits – known as Woodland Carbon Units 
(WCUs) – from their project. They will need to register their woodland with the Woodland 
Carbon Code before they start planting, so that the potential opportunities for future 
revenues from the developing UK carbon market are not missed.  
 
The Woodland Carbon Guarantee (WCaG) is an incentive scheme which will provide long-
term (up to 35 years) payments for carbon sequestration to landowners in England who 
plant new woodlands. The WCaG offers successful participants the option to sell woodland 
carbon units to government at a guaranteed price set by auction, which may be above 
current market rates. The guarantee holder will also have the option to sell verified WCUs 
to government at a guaranteed price set by auction, which may be above current market 
rates. The guarantee holder will also have the option to sell the WCUs on the open market. 
Registration is open year-round and participation in the scheme will be through periodic 
auctions which will be advertised online. 
  
The second and equally important issue the forestry sector can deliver for a Climate 
Change Strategy involves the construction industry. Home grown timber used in 
construction actually stores atmospheric carbon literally into the fabric of the building, 
which is a huge advantage over the use of steel, blocks, bricks and mortar, each of which 
consumes large amounts of energy in their manufacture and therefore the emission of 
significant amounts of carbon dioxide. Prioritising the use of home-grown timber over 
imported timber will be vital for truly sustainable development and new housing , and so as 
not to precipitate an increased demand for imported timber, the best outcome would be an 
increased demand for homegrown timber 
  
There is considerable Government support for increasing the use of homegrown timber. 
This is covered in the forestry sections in the Clean Growth Strategy, The 25 Year 
Environment Plan and in the Committee on Climate Change report on net zero. The 
relevant sections and statements are.  
  
The 25 Year Plan, section 4. Focusing on Woodland to maximise its many benefits, pages 
47 to 49.  
  
The Clean Growth Strategy, pages 16, 57, 107 and 108. 
  
The Committee of Climate Change. (see attached) Net Zero Technical Report, pages 260 
and 271, Sustainability.  
  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan 
  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_
data/file/700496/clean-growth-strategy-correction-april-2018.pdf 
  
(The manufacture of 1 tonne of cement causes about 0.87 tonnes of CO2 emissions. The 
manufacture of 1 tonne of bricks causes the emission of 29 kg of CO2. On average in 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/woodland-carbon-fund
https://www.woodlandcarboncode.org.uk/
https://www.woodlandcarboncode.org.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/woodland-carbon-guarantee
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/25-year-environment-plan
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/700496/clean-growth-strategy-correction-april-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/700496/clean-growth-strategy-correction-april-2018.pdf


2018 the manufacture of 1 tonne of steel emitted 1.85 tonnes of C02. The steel industry 
therefore produces more C02 than steel! (data from www.worldsteel.org).  
On average, one broad leaf tree will absorb in the region of 1 tonne of carbon dioxide 
during its full lifetime.) 
   
I hope you will find these comments useful and if you require further advice on woodland 
creation or woodland carbon please get in touch. 

 
Woodland Trust 

 
Thank you for inviting me to your virtual town hall to discuss your draft climate change 
strategy.  It was interesting to contribute to the event and to hear the views of councillors 
and other stakeholders.  It is good that you have adopted such an inclusive approach to 
developing your strategy. 
 
I have read the draft strategy and would like to make some comments on behalf of the 
Woodland Trust,  so I will focus on the environment section and in particular the 
references to trees and woods,  although of course I recognise that reducing carbon  
emissions should be the primary focus of your strategy. 
 
The Woodland Trust believes that trees and woods have a key role to play in helping to 
tackle both the climate and the biodiversity emergencies.  Natural areas such as woodland 
have also played a vital role in the Covid emergency, in providing people with areas for 
healthy exercise and contact with nature.   
 
We have produced an Emergency Tree 
Plan https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/publications/2020/01/emergency-tree-plan/ which 
sets out some key actions that we would like to see delivered by both central and local 
government.    
 
It is good to see the contribution of your existing trees to carbon sequestration recognised 
in your plan.   We also note that you have strong commitment to sustainable stewardship 
of your tree and woodland resource and that this has been recognised by the district being 
designated as one of the Tree Cities of the World.  That is something of which you can be 
justifiably proud and we would encourage more towns and cities to seek this recognition.   
 
You confirm in your strategy the commitment in your tree strategy to planting 300 new 
street trees each year.  That is a good commitment, as street trees provide multiple 
benefits to local communities, as well as sequestering carbon.  This has been recognised 
by Government in the recent planning white paper in which they commit to all streets in 
new housing development being lined with trees.   
 
We would like your strategy to make some additional commitments to planting new trees 
and creating new woods and we would like to see you set ambitious targets to reflect the 
urgency of the climate and biodiversity emergencies.  The street tree target is welcome but 
we would also like you to consider having an overall target for expanding the district's tree 
canopy cover.   Some councils have set targets in terms of number of new trees to be 
planted (e.g. planting a tree for every resident or every child) but tree canopy cover 
expansion targets are probably better, as they better recognise the benefits provided by 
larger more mature trees.   We also advocate having a target of 30% for tree canopy cover 
in new development, recognising that it is often easier to put in new trees and woods when 
a new community is being created.   

Page 36

http://www.worldsteel.org/
https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/publications/2020/01/emergency-tree-plan/


 
We would also like you to commit to planting at least three new trees when trees outside 
woods have to be removed.  I note that currently in your tree strategy you only commit to 
planting one replacement tree.  Newly planted trees will take many decades before they 
provide many of the benefits of a large mature tree and in harsh environments such as 
streets, it is a sad fact that many newly planted trees may not survive.   

 
Herts & Middlesex Wildlife Trust 
 
Herts & Middlesex Wildlife Trust welcomes the intention of Welwyn Hatfield District Council 
to publish a Climate Change Strategy and the opportunity to comment on the draft.  
Alongside the climate crisis, the world is facing an ecological crisis and the future of 
Hertfordshire’s wildlife is integrally linked to addressing climate change. The Trust 
welcomes that WHDC has recognised these links and the importance of acting now for 
biodiversity. The Wildlife Trusts are calling for 30% of land to be managed for wildlife by 
2030, the minimum required for nature’s recovery; this is reinforced by the findings of the 
2020 Herts State of Nature report.  
 
Comments on the draft Strategy are given below.  
 
Evidence base  
 
National evidence: the Strategy could underline the importance of the natural environment 
to the economy more by including reference to the ‘Dasgupta review of the Economics of 
Biodiversity’, commissioned by the Treasury. The interim report published in April 2020 
underlines the need for an integrated approach to growth, industry, biodiversity and 
climate change, and that protecting and enhancing biodiversity will help address climate 
change.  
 
The report states “Biodiversity loss is also intimately related to climate change. Indeed, 
climate change may become the major driver of biodiversity loss in the coming decades. 
Land use change which entails biodiversity loss – in particular deforestation – is, and could 
continue to be, a significant contributor to climate change. Protecting and enhancing 
biodiversity will help us address climate change, by helping both to mitigate climate 
change by storing and sequestering carbon in ecosystems, and to adapt to the inevitable 
effects of unavoidable climate change.”  
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/interim-report-the-dasgupta-review-
independent-review-on-the-economics-of-biodiversity  
 
National: the Strategy could underline the link between a healthy natural environment and 
health and wellbeing more.  This includes the value of individual volunteering in the natural 
environment. The Wildlife Trusts have worked with the University of Essex and Leeds 
Beckett University to create the evidence base for the impact of volunteering on health and 
wellbeing and of nature-rich environments on health and wellbeing. Social return on 
investment analysis of the health and wellbeing impacts of Wildlife Trust programmes 
(Leeds Beckett University, 2019)  
 
https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2019-09/SROI%20Report%20FINAL%20-
%20DIGITAL.pdf  
 
Wellbeing Benefits from Natural Environments Rich in Wildlife (University of Essex 2015)  

Page 37



https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2018-
05/r1_literature_review_wellbeing_benefits_of_wild_places_lres_0.pdf  
 
Hertfordshire: in 2020 the Trust published the Hertfordshire State of Nature Report and 
recommend that this is included in the Strategy as a key evidence document. The report 
draws on biological data collected over the last 50 years and held by the Herts 
Environmental Record Centre. Analysis was carried out and the report identified priority 
habitats and Species of Conservation Concern for which the county has a special 
responsibility. The report underlines the connection between addressing the climate crisis 
and the ecological crisis, and consideration of the findings of the report within the WHDC 
Climate Change Strategy would mean that the Council can take appropriate action for 
wildlife.  
 
The State of Nature report calls for all existing habitats to be managed for conservation, as 
well as giving a target of 30% of habitat cove. In Hertfordshire this means roughly doubling 
the amount of the current area which is clearly a challenging target; WHDC could make a 
considerable contribution towards this target.  
https://www.hertswildlifetrust.org.uk/stateofnature  
 
2 Planning actions  
 
The Trust welcomes the inclusion of policies in the Local Plan for the protection of natural 
habitats and to ensure that ecological implications of new housing and infrastructure 
developments are fully considered. We welcome that the Council will be using the 
mitigation hierarchy and applying Biodiversity Net Gain. However, the Trust has 
commented on the Local Plan and has serious concerns about the current policies. We 
would like to see clarification and strengthening of its policies around Biodiversity Net Gain 
in accordance with the upcoming Environment Act, by detailing how biodiversity net gain 
will be calculated and setting out that the Defra metric will be used as the mechanism for 
this.  
 
The Trust urges WHDC to adopt a structure and process for Biodiversity Net Gain so that 
it can be monitored and measured, and to provide a consistent approach and reduce the 
risk of challenge by developers. The Trust has developed a best practice Supplementary 
Planning Document to support this which is available to WHDC.  
The Trust would like to see ambition from WHDC to address biodiversity declines by 
setting a higher target than the 10% minimum and seeking to deliver the 30% by 2030 
target.  
 
The Trust would like to see the Council, through the planning agenda, identifying and 
ensuring implementation of ways to increase the extent of habitats, of joining up existing 
habitats and of improving the value of land for wildlife. The Trust welcomes that the Local 
Plan recognises the importance of protecting natural habitats within Green Infrastructure 
planning and the potential to create new habitats.  
 
3 Environment Actions  
 
The Trust welcomes the range of actions which the Council has identified including the 
protection afforded in the Local Plan. The Trust welcomes the recognition of the role of the 
Herts Environmental Records Centre.  
 

Page 38



The Council could commit to the target of 30% of land in managed for wildlife by 2030 and 
include measures in the Strategy so that they can play a leading role for the District. 
 
The Trust would like to see a commitment in the Strategy for WHDC to:  
 
 Create a Nature Recovery Plan for the District.  
 Carry out a biodiversity audit of the Council’s land holdings to identify measures to 

increase their value for wildlife  
 Set a target of 30% of Council land to be managed for wildlife by 2030.  
 Ensure ongoing conservation management of land with value for wildlife to ensure 

its protection and enhancement.  
 Adopt of the principle of ‘right habitat, right place’ to guide its decision-making on 

habitat creation, new green infrastructure and tree planting.  
 Reduce the amount of chemicals such as pesticides and herbicides used in all its 

operations.  
 Avoid the use of peat.  
 Engage the local community in a range of activities which help address the climate 

and ecological crises recognising the link between a health natural environment and 
health and wellbeing.  

 
4 Council housing action  
 
The Strategy could go further in terms of how biodiversity can benefit through the 
management of the Council housing.  
 
The Trust would like to see a commitment in the Strategy to:  
 
• Identifying opportunities for wildlife-friendly measures such as the addition of nest 

boxes for birds and bats.  
• Where there is communal land associated with Council housing, a commitment 

could be added to create and manage this land to benefit wildlife.  
 
5 Water actions  
 
Water use has a direct impact upon wildlife habitats. Hertfordshire has a special 
responsibility for chalk rivers which are internationally important habitats supporting rare 
species like water voles. We welcome the recognition of these habitats by the Council.  
 
The Trust would like to see a commitment in the Strategy to:  
 
• Reduce its own water consumption in its own buildings and in its operations such as 

grounds maintenance.  
• Carry out capital work and ongoing management to improve water quality and water 

habitats on its landholdings  
• Ensure water courses and other wetland habitats are protected and enhanced with 

the planning system.  

 
Gardens Trust 

 
Thank you for consulting Hertfordshire Gardens Trust, a member of the Gardens Trust, 
statutory consultee for historic designed parks and gardens. This response is on behalf of 
both organizations. 

Page 39



 
We support  policies to  encourage waste water recycling, SUDS, and green infrastructure 
to help mitigate the effects of climates change. 
 
We have the following concerns about the effect these policies might have on the  many 
historic parks and gardens, both designated and undesignated which lie within the 
borough. There is no specific mention, apart from one brief 'heritage' , of the effects, both 
of climate change and of any mitigation measures which may be undertaken. 
 
Many of our historic parks and gardens contain lakes, often formed from dammed rivers as 
at Tewin Water Hatfield House, and Brocket Park, spring fed as at Digswell Water or 
features as at Woolmers Park or early industrial water ways as at Mill Green. These are 
sensitive to changes in water supply and mitigation measures, either by narrowing the 
watercourse or widening it to contain floodwaters would cause substantial harm to these 
designed features. Similarly  these designed landscapes contain much tree planting which 
is a key element in climate change mitigation. The species of trees and the disposition in 
these landscapes contributes in a major way to their significance and their character. We 
recognise that species may need to change due to pests, diseases or climatic conditions, 
but these should always be carefully considered site by site so as to preserve its historic 
integrity . Likewise, mass planting of trees in historic parks and gardens to increase tree 
cover in the borough should not be permitted if it alters the design intent of the parkland. 
 
None of this is mentioned and Historic Designed Landscapes  are not even noted as an 
issue to be considered in any policy or strategy. The NPPF requires  that heritage assets 
be conserved and where possible enhanced. This should also apply to this Climate 
Change Strategy. 
 
We also note that you mention a Green Corridor which is illustrated in Figure 8. This 
Green Corridor has been much debated during the Local Plan Examination Hearings and 
the optimum criteria for a Green Corridor, supported by research documentation, has been 
set out by The Central Herts Green Corridor Group. The Green Corridor as illustrated in 
Figure 8 is inadequate and would not function as a Green Corridor. A section of the Green 
Corridor has been included in Document EX227, Diagram P3 on SDS2(WGC5) Birchall 
Garden Suburb Section in The Local Plan Examination Document. This diagram 
demonstrates that the council does not understand the requirements and function of a 
Green Corridor. Although HGT and GT support the idea of a Green Corridor not least to 
prevent coalescence, or destruction, of the  settings of heritage assets, a robust , fit-for-
purpose corridor should be planned. 

 
CPRE Herts 

 
Summary of Key Points 
 
CPRE Hertfordshire (CPREH) welcomes this document as a positive step, but it should do 
much more than record existing policy practice, references and intentions. 
CPRE – The countryside charity, last year joined a national coalition calling for urgent 
action on the climate emergency. Our report ‘Greener Better Faster’ said the UK should 
meet net zero emissions as soon as possible with a target of 2045 at the latest. 
A credible carbon reduction strategy needs to aim for net zero as soon as possible, should 
value the countryside and be aligned with a land use planning and transport strategy that 
emphasises regeneration, walkable neighbourhoods, low car dependency and traffic 
reduction. 

Page 40



 
Technically the strategy needs strengthening to: 
 

provide a clearer pathway to decarbonisation of Welwyn Hatfield 
include more baseline evidence, carbon budgets, reduction targets and identifiable 

markers. 
Evaluate delivery with monitoring at set intervals up to 2030 and 2050. 
Pathway modelling can then help the local authority to understand the most appropriate 

options for adoption 
 
This is work with lots of new challenges. A framework for review by the Carbon Trust1 is 
available, highlighting for instance the need for Scope 1, 2 and 3 Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 
emissions to be separately accounted for. 
 
As the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) say every policy lever is required if net zero 
by 2050 is to be met. Governance and scrutiny is vital too; the action plans which 
members and officers will prepare should be with community engagement, subject of 
expert external review by qualified climate scientists and have cabinet level oversight. 
 
Opening Information / visuals 
 
The introduction should re-emphasise the urgency of the situation; the climate emergency 
represents not only an unprecedented challenge and threat to biodiversity and the 
countryside, but even to the planet’s ability to remain habitable for humankind. The 
Climate Emergency is a fact if we accept the overwhelming view of the world’s scientists. 
‘The rise in global CO2 concentration since 2000 is about 20 ppm per decade, which is up 
to 10 times faster than any sustained rise in CO2 during the past 800,000 years’ 
 
The strategy begins with some images of warming strips but no real explanation of what  
they actually mean. We would suggest that as well as more explanation, a warming strips 
chart that relates to the situation in Welwyn Hatfield would make it more locally relevant 
(see example below for Vancouver). We suggest including graphics or a chart that 
communicates visually the future projected scenarios for global warming. 
 
The Value of the Countryside 
 
We would suggest that the strategy more clearly acknowledges the valuable role of the 
countryside as a carbon sequester, which also aligns with other biodiversity goals. The 
countryside is not to be seen simply as a convenient repository for excess housing 
demand. 
 
We would like to see the strategy emphasise a ‘fabric first’ approach which means both to 
repair and improve the fabric of existing property (embodied carbon) as well as the 
effective fabric of towns and villages (regeneration). This needs to done while supporting 
the most vulnerable sections of society who cannot secure decent well insulated affordable 
housing. We suggest the strategy demonstrate zero carbon objectives and zero tolerance 
of empty and underused land and buildings, safeguarding greenfield and countryside for 
enhanced offsetting, biodiversity, sustainable drainage and human wellbeing. 
 
CPREH welcome the aim to enhance river corridors but a programme is needed for all 
river corridors to be appraised and enhanced as sustainable wildlife and movement 

Page 41



corridors. This can raise public awareness of the river environment, its condition, critical 
water shortages and the impacts of over-abstraction. 
 
Land Use Planning 
 
CPREH believes the strategy needs to inform and be integrated with low carbon land- use 
planning strategies. For instance, it does not explain that the local plan target of 12,000 
new homes over the next 15 years, assuming an average new dwelling comprises 50-80 
tonnes of CO2, will of itself generate 600,000 – 960,000 tonnes of CO2 emissions. This 
equates to 7 tonnes for every resident of Welwyn Hatfield whereas the Committee on 
Climate Change UK (CCC) latest Sixth Carbon Budget (December 2020) says per capita 
emissions need to be reduced to 3.5 tonnes pp by 2035, and the IPCC report has forecast 
the average per person footprint needs to be reduce to 2.3 tonnes CO2 by 2030 (the 
current UK average is approx. 5.6 tonnes). A strategic shift is needed to value embodied 
carbon, to repair, recycle and optimise more of the existing building stock as well as 
upgrade its energy efficiency. 80% or more of the stock that will be around in 2050 is 
already built. How is this stock to be made more efficient? How is it encouraged if 
the local planning focus is always to new build? The NPPF says planning should support 
the transition to a low carbon future and shape places in ways that contribute to radical 
reductions in greenhouse gas emissions. The Climate Action Strategy needs to build on 
the provisions of the NPPF. Place shaping means reversing trends to centralise health, 
education and other services in car dependent locations but to foster mixed use walkable 
neighbourhoods so that people’s main daily needs are all nearby, ideally within walking or 
cycling distance. We suggest the Strategy adopt this with targets and monitoring against 
current baseline figures. The strategy should say that new masterplans and design codes 
should incorporate this walkable neighbourhood concept and other measures that align 
with a zero-carbon strategy. The National Housing Audit 2020 revealed not just far too 
much poor and mediocre design especially in rural areas, but predominant patterns of car 
dependency2. So an aspiration to promote walking cycling and public transport is not itself 
sufficient. 
 
2 National Housing Audit for England by Place Alliance UCL and CPRE – Jan 2020 
The Place Alliance report Home Comforts3 Oct 2020 demonstrated how too many people 
in the pandemic were uncomfortable in cramped homes and that 3 million did not have 
adequate access to green spaces in walking distance of their homes, anything within 10 
minutes. Welwyn Hatfield needs to assess areas on this basis and address green space 
deficiencies. CPRE Hertfordshire feel that stronger commitments to greening existing 
places are needed. The planting of 300 street trees each year does not seem adequate or 
related to a baseline assessment of need; it is not ambitious enough when there are many 
treeless streets that need shading for climate adaptation. 
 
Transport 
 
While transport is a matter shared with the County Council, the Strategy must foresee and 
lead a shift towards sustainable transport modes to reduce emissions as well as to 
prioritise the countryside. Transport is the UK’s greatest carbon emitter as a sector and 
with high car ownership in Welwyn Hatfield there has to be a clear pathway to reduced car 
dependency and car ownership. The strategy should reveal the current pattern and figures 
for Welwyn Hatfield and then a pathway to reduce them. The strategy however refers to 
‘Improving traffic flows’ but not traffic reduction. It doesn’t explain that the only acceptable 
way to improve flows is when vehicular traffic levels are reduced; not by road building 
which will increase emissions. The strategy needs to include carbon budgets and show it 

Page 42



means to decarbonise travel. This means a transformation in travel with zero emission 
public transport, electric bicycles and other active travel measures. Local targets for 
vehicle reduction and for increasing the amounts of walking and cycling are needed. 
This shift may not be easy but with good planning, with broadband expansion and for 
sustainable transport, it can bring cleaner living environments and less stressful lives. A 
modal shift is in the interests of drivers too as it frees up existing road space for essential 
vehicle use. Re-using and recycling ‘greyfield’ land, brownfield land currently taken for car 
parks, garages etc, helps to reduce countryside loss. Better public transport also helps 
household incomes burdened by costs of maintaining extra cars. The government has 
already set out a transport hierarchy in its Decarbonising Transport publication but it needs 
to be supported by funding decisions, carbon targets and local programmes of investment 
in active travel and clean green public transport such as new local rapid transit routes 
perhaps targeted at the young and elderly, which can bring reduced traffic and congestion. 
The strategy needs to consider the use of important policy tools already available such as 
local parking taxes, road charging, road space re-allocation, traffic filters which make 
sustainable travel options the natural first choice. 
 
3 http://placealliance.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/Place-Alliance-Homes-and-
Covid-Report_2020.pdf 
 
Governance / Decision making 
  
The strategy needs to enjoy cabinet level support. The action plans which the members 
and officers group will prepare under the strategy should be subject of community 
engagement and review but also expertly review by qualified climate scientists or bodies 
such as the Carbon Trust. There could be a formal collaboration with the University of 
Hertfordshire’s Centre for Climate Change Research. CPREH believes the transition from 
carbon must be equitable and democratic for rural areas so we support the setting up of a 
representative citizens panel / assembly for long term engagement and governance. 
 
Welwyn Hatfield’s Organisational Goals 
 
The Council itself aims to achieve a net zero-carbon status by 2030 but this should not be 
reliant on offsetting. The Council should use its own procurement and land ownership to 
secure best practice standards for new development to meet zero carbon goals and be 
prepared to exceed current statutory obligations and national requirements where this 
brings effective carbon reduction. The council can play a role in developing and supporting 
green finance measures to enable local beneficially climate action projects and green 
businesses. 
 
Other initiatives 
 
In housing the strategy needs to go beyond current practice. The replacement of old 
boilers in Council Housing by new boilers is cited but seems wasteful and at odds with the 
policy to phase out gas heating in new homes by 2025. The technologies that are being 
promoted of air and ground source heat pumps need to be coupled with rapid roll out of 
building insulation. This can address high energy bills and the fuel poverty experienced by 
low-income households. CPREH welcome the fact that the Council will offer carbon 
literacy training to members and officers but it should take a lead promoting carbon literacy 
skills in organisations, business and the wider population. Carbon calculators are already 
available. The IPPC say globally we need people’s carbon footprints to reduce to an 
average of 2.1 tonnes CO2 each year by 2030. The current UK average figure is 5.6 

Page 43



tonnes. What is the average for Welwyn Hatfield? What changes are required to bring it 
down to IPCC levels in the next ten years? The strategy should set out the kinds of 
changes needed to deliver such radical reductions. 

 
Groundwork East 

 
Many thanks for the opportunity to comment on the draft strategy and for the seminar that I 
attended this afternoon.   
 
Overall I found the strategy very easy to read and follow with excellent links to supporting 
information and clear identification of the specifics that the local authority can do to 
improve its own performance.  I look forward to seeing the specifics within an action plan 
of the different actions presented by cost and benefit as the plan suggests. 
 
As per my ‘chat’ and my comments made during the meeting, Groundwork would like to 
see much more made of the opportunities/need for behaviour change within the strategy.  
Currently this is limited to one main paragraph whereas if targets are to be met it will only 
be through behaviour change on an unprecedented scale.  There needs to be a scaling up 
of communication/awareness raising/education across our communities and we would like 
to see a programme developed to bring together the work of a number of groups into a 
coordinated network of opportunities.  Potentially a multi-year programme with targets for 
people reached and estimates of savings reached.  The strategy references the difficulty in 
getting such messages across without being overly negative and we agree and 
understand the need to develop a ‘guilt-free’ programme to gain people’s attention and buy 
in.   
 
We believe that Groundwork is well placed to support such a climate education 
programme to mobilise and maintain whole-community action over a sustained period.  As 
mentioned in the ‘Chat’ we have been undertaking small scale work on this subject with 
Suffolk County and District Councils for many years as part of the Suffolk Climate Change 
Partnership (see the ‘About’ tab at www.greensuffolk.org) and will be scaling this up going 
forward.  For example we produced the factsheets for the local councillors to help the 
messaging and communications on what is a huge subject.  We have undertaken projects 
with schools, businesses, parish and town councils, community groups on a wide range of 
subjects and going forward aim to be pulling this type of activity into a coordinated 
programme to help produce the step change required. 
 
Initial specific thoughts regarding items that were raised in the draft strategy and 
discussion are below but we would be pleased to discuss ideas in more detail as and 
when it suits. 
 

 We tend to use the term climate education to bring together a suite of clear 
messaging and behaviour change tools that engage and equip individuals with the 
knowledge to inspire meaningful action.  So from the structured climate literacy 
below, to important ‘softer’ engagement approaches through large scale audience 
specific campaigns, multi-platform comms, family learning, community workshops, 
staff webinars all possibly supporting the establishment of a climate  action champion 
volunteer network. 

 

 Carbon literacy – you reference carbon literacy training for your Councillors and 
staff.  We have staff trained to deliver this course but are also working on slightly less 
formal versions of the training to make it more achievable/attractive for some groups 

Page 44

http://www.greensuffolk.org/


who do not have 8 hours to give across to this.  This includes working on an 
introductory session for Parish Councils to encourage engagement, development of a 
version for schools and also early discussions on how we could do this in a format to 
engage young people.  We have staff with the skills around the climate change 
agenda but also qualified teachers and youth workers to develop something that is 
appropriate for a range of audiences 

 

 We are currently working with a number of schools in WGC to help them improve 
their school grounds (for biodiversity, learning etc), provide teacher training on use of 
their grounds and also have the opportunity to introduce our climate change pack 
and activity to them.  If you are looking at quick wins or case studies then this may be 
of interest to you to be aware of or assist with?  It was planned that this work would 
be completed in the summer term but with Covid etc we are now planning to keep 
delivery going into the winter term as much as funding allows 

 

 As part of the Suffolk work we run a Carbon Charter programme for local businesses 
which includes a programme of seminars on a range of issues and could run similar 
within Welwyn Hatfield.  We also advise on energy saving to businesses but this is 
part of a large EU funded programme across Suffolk & Norfolk which has supported 
over 850 businesses to date.  A small, focussed programme may be useful locally 
perhaps?  http://www.beeanglia.org/ 

 

 We run Green Doctor programmes elsewhere, including in Essex, providing home 
energy saving advice to vulnerable people and those in fuel poverty.  We are 
continually looking for funding to expand this work and will certainly make contact 
with you if we find anything suitable for this area.  We are trying Energy Redress 
Fund again for some work in Suffolk currently but we know this is usually 
oversubscribed 

 

 Rivers – I also mentioned the importance of local rivers and water generally which is 
an element of climate change that gets forgotten at times.  The water companies and 
the catchment partnerships are key with this and should be engaged from the water 
quality and quantity point of view and also the opportunity to educate people on their 
impacts and, again, the behavioural changes that they need to make to improve the 
situation 

 
Due the scale of the climate change agenda and the fact that we are a community 
focussed environmental charity, all of our work will be of relevance to one extent or 
another but I hope that the above gives a flavour of some ways that we could assist you 
progress the strategy but we would be pleased to discuss this further. 

 
Cuffley Parish Council 

 
Parish Councils should work in partnership with WHBC and adopt the same targets  
 
1. Parish Councils should aim to reduce carbon emissions from their own estate and 

operations to net zero by 2030 ie Use a carbon foot printing guide to measure the PC’s  
own current carbon usage and set annual targets to become carbon neutral by 2030 
 

2. PCs should  comply with statutory obligations to mitigate and adapt to climate change. 
 

Page 45

http://www.beeanglia.org/


3. PCs should work with, support, encourage and engage residents, communities, 
businesses and other partners in initiatives to reduce carbon emissions. 
 

4. PCs should  embed climate change mitigation and adaptation into our plans, strategies 
and policies. 
 

5. PCs should  reduce carbon emissions across the Parish  by promoting energy 
efficiency measures, sustainable construction, renewable energy, sustainable transport 
and behavioural change 
 

PCs should also: 
 

 Improve biodiversity 

 Plant trees 

 Improve existing woodlands 

 Install electric charge points  - all new developments and public points across the 
Parish 

 Develop a sustainable Travel Plan  

 Develop a walking and cycling improvement plans 

 Create/improve green corridors  

 Encourage heat pumps  in new developments 

 Encourage  Lifetime Design Standards (adaptable homes for all ages and disabilities) 

 Solar panels in all new build 

 Build to Passive House Standards (low energy consumption)  
 
A Borough wide forum should be set up to coordinate Parish/Borough progress towards 
the targets 

 
David Lock Associates on behalf of Tarmac 
 
I attach a representation on behalf of Tarmac Trading Ltd, in relation to the Welwyn 
Hatfield Climate Change Strategy consultation.   
 
This representation is made on behalf of Tarmac Trading Ltd (Tarmac) as the promoter of 
the proposed Birchall Garden Suburb (BGS) development, in response to the Council’s 
consultation on the Climate Change Strategy.  
 
The BGS site is identified as a strategic allocation for development within the adopted East 
Herts District Plan (2018) and the draft Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan (2016), to deliver a 
sustainable new community across the administrative areas of Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council (WHBC) and East Hertfordshire District Council (EHDC).  
 
Tarmac strongly endorse the high-level aspirations in the Strategy to reduce carbon 
emissions and to promote sustainability. Tarmac are helping to tackle climate change by 
optimising the use of resources, making a positive contribution to biodiversity and 
enhancing the environment through the stewardship of their sites as part of their national 
sustainability strategy. This includes reducing carbon from their company-wide operations 
by 30% by 2020 and planting over 112,000 trees in the last 3 years.  
 
At the BGS site, sustainability is a key design aspiration, which underpins the physical, 
economic, and social dimensions of the illustrative master plan. The development has 

Page 46



been designed to incorporate garden community principles and accord with the 
sustainability and energy efficiency aspirations of the Council, where deliverable.  
Strategic sites within the Borough, including BGS, will be brought forward in the context of 
a site-specific Masterplan SPD developed by the Council. New development will therefore 
be brought forward in this context, embedding climate change mitigation from the outset.  
 
The full BGS allocation, as put forward in the adopted East Herts District Local Plan and 
the draft Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan, would deliver a comprehensively planned new 
community offering a range of sustainability benefits which will contribute towards reducing 
carbon and is thereby consistent with the Council’s Strategy. These benefits are 
substantial, especially when considered collectively and in comparison to other potential 
strategic development proposals at Potters Bar and Symondshyde.  
 
The sustainability benefits of the full BGS allocation include, but are not limited to:  
 
• An integrated network of bus routes through the site.  
• Adjacent to the proposed Mass Rapid Transit link via the A414.  
• In proximity to an existing Sustrans cycle route (Route 61 via the Cole Green Way).  
• Employment opportunities and other facilities available in the adjacent Welwyn Garden 
City, which will help to minimise car travel through the attractiveness of alternative 
sustainable modes of travel.  
• Employment sites included in the wider Local Plan allocation.  
• Designed as a walkable neighbourhood, to help promote active travel.  
• Delivers an extensive area (some 75 hectares) of publicly accessible parkland in the 
central part of the site, utilising a former landfill area to contribute towards a network of 
multi-functional green spaces for the benefit of people and wildlife.  
• Forms part of a wider strategic green corridor, integrating and connecting existing areas 
of wildlife habitat within and adjoining the site.  
• Delivers a Biodiversity Net Gain.  
 
Unfortunately, WHBC are currently proposing to reduce the scale of the draft allocation 
which would diminish the extent of sustainability benefits which could be realised. 
Confining the BGS development to the western part of the site would mean that the cost of 
opening the entirety of the central parkland could not be borne by the scheme. This would 
have a knock-on effect on the quality of the planned Welwyn Hatfield Green Corridor and 
its associated management. The extent of community facilities would be reduced, which 
would compromise the walkability of the new community. Divorcing the development from 
the A414 would also prevent the ability for the development to be served directly by the 
cross-county Mass Rapid Transit link that is proposed via that route. For all these reasons, 
the proposed reduction of the scale and extent of BGS would undermine the Council’s 
Climate Change Strategy.  

 
Cllr Jane Quinton 

 
General Observations 
 
We only have ten years to get this right – an incredibly short time-frame for change and a 
sense of real urgency must be instilled in these actions.  I don’t get that sense of urgency 
from this rather down beat document which I don’t think will inspire people to act. Many of 
the options mentioned say they will consider taking action, but fall very short of action 
actually being taken.  18 months after the declaration of a climate EMERGENCY, more 
substantive action could have been expected. 

Page 47



 
There are many aspects of the Climate Emergency which desperately need urgent policy 
action from National Government and the money to back it to be effective.  Many of their 
aspirations seem way off the mark. The Clean growth strategy, Future homes standards, 
reduction in plastics and public transport in particular are unlikely to  be achieved without a 
massive step change in policy. The latest delay in implementing the future homes 
standards is especially short-sighted. However, there are many things that can also be 
achieved on a local basis by local government to compliment or exceed the National 
policies. 
 
The Local Plan for Welhat could foreseeably be implemented in the next year, but the 
policies it contains regarding sustainable building and energy saving are out of date, too 
vague and generally inadequate to achieve substantial change.  The Local plan should be 
revisited as soon as it is implemented to strengthen and improve the policies relating to 
energy saving in construction and standards of energy use in dwellings as well as any 
other policies which impact on Climate change.  Developers must understand that 
however woeful the government building standards may be, Welwyn Hatfield expects to 
have buildings of a very high, green standard.  
 
Any new homes should be heated by air source heat pumps or other non-fossil fuel heat 
sources and gas central heating needs to be ruled out immediately. Houses need to be 
built to a high standard (as near to passive house standard as possible) so that only low 
levels of heating or cooling are actually required. The cost of equipping  a new home to a 
low-carbon standard is small compared to the overall cost and can often be recouped by 
lower energy bills.  It is certainly considerably cheaper than retro-fitting homes to meet 
standards imposed at a later date. Solar panels should be standard on all new buildings, 
both residential and commercial wherever possible. Water usage should also be kept as 
low as possible and include recycling options. All these aims should be rigorously enforced 
by the planning Officers and applications should only be encouraged if they adhere to 
them. If high expectations are clear at the outset, higher standards should ensue.  
 
The council should be congratulated on doing a better job with the new builds that they 
control (although there is more, such as eliminating gas heating that could still be 
achieved), but that rigour needs to be applied to commercial developers as well.  
 
The clean growth strategy mentions making all homes energy Band C certifiable by 2035. 
How many homes in WHBC are not yet in this band and what percentage of housing stock 
is that? What are the specific plans to improve this percentage? 
 
Without massive improvements to the bus services to compliment the transport options, 
there will be a limit to what can be achieved with regard to reducing emissions by the 
borough alone.  However, greener transport should be encouraged, with a planned 
increase in Electric vehicle charging points, the practical ability for new homes to install 
charging points for electric vehicles and joined up, priority cycle routes into the towns and 
local centres with decent cycle storage provided at destinations.  
 
All new borough vehicles should be electric, with no new petrol or gas vehicles. Although 
initially more expensive, the lifetime costs of electric vehicles are often much lower. 
Reprovision of the community buses should all be electric. 
 
Training and exposure to relevant conferences for officers and members should be 
routinely offered and learning from groups such as the UK100, ADEPT etc should have 

Page 48



been implemented a long time ago, not still be under consideration, as should a change to 
a green energy supplier for the council. The appointment of a Climate change officer, 
whose sole responsibility is to bring forward relevant information, training, collaboration 
and ideas and drive more radical change is really necessary. At the moment, stretched 
officers are being asked to consider climate change without the time, real breadth of 
understanding or the coordination needed between different departments to implement 
substantial change. Response to Climate change is a big field and constantly changing so 
can be daunting unless someone has the time to keep up to speed with innovations and 
ideas. 
 
Collaboration with the University of Hertfordshire and other outside bodies may provide 
sources of new ideas and methods of working which would benefit the council.  This is not 
just about how they manage their buildings and employees/students carbon footprint, but 
about using their access to academic knowledge. 
 
Waste recycling.  Most of the changes need to take place nationally, but we could be 
encouraging reduction in  single use plastics and praising companies that innovate.  
Plastic should also become increasingly difficult to recycle abroad, requiring UK solutions 
to recycling which could be a business opportunity.  E.g. investment in high tech recycling 
plants, enzyme digestion tech, maybe in conjunction with UH. 
 
Many of the governance actions of energy savings etc are really rather too pathetic to put 
in a report like this – e.g. paper recycling bins and using LED lights in the Hatfield carpark.  
Things like that are standard procedures and shouldn’t need a mention.  That they appear 
in this report makes the council seem desperate because there are no substantial items to 
report. 
 
Solutions to climate change need to be normalised and inspirational, not seen as difficult, 
scary and expensive. A weekly section in the TeamTalk, website and circulars could have 
a “green news/inspiration of the week” article which focuses on solutions found by people 
in other LGAs, around the country or the world not just on the problems (which can be very 
demotivating). Energy efficiency and conservation should be seen as everyday 
aspirations, not just for eco-warriors. 
 
The council need to assess the feasibility of installing or buying into solar power 
generation projects.  Many LGAs including District level authorities are either setting up 
their own solar farms or investing in other solar farms and generating profits as well as 
green energy. Others are setting up solar arrays on buildings such as schools or issuing 
council Solar bonds for people to invest in (e.g Warrington).  There are many innovative 
schemes now appearing which we could learn from. Just googling local council Solar 
farms brings up many examples.  Although this involves capital outlay, the pay-back period 
is very small compared to most other investment projects. 

 
Specific Points 
 
P3 the 2008 Climate change act 2008 aims for 80 % reduction by 2050 not 2020. Please 
can we have an estimate from CCC maybe on how this is going – are we achieving 1/2 of 
that aim yet (1990-2020-2050 so we are at half way point). 
 
Baseline section graph. Please add in roughly where that trend should be if we stick to the 
Paris accord.   
 

Page 49



Changing to a renewable supplier – the amount of time that has been wasted on not doing 
this is not encouraging. 
 
P11 Policy SP10 Have we seen Sustainable design and construction principles from 
developers and have they adhered to these policies? What is actually happening in 
practice with new developments?  Can we dissect a recent case study to see how much 
compliance has actually happened.  Although people can get access to planning 
documents, it is difficult for a lay person to understand the extent to which the actual built 
out houses are compliant and how energy efficient they are. Perhaps there could be a 
Climate change checklist required for every planning application listing the heating, 
insulation, water usage and build standards proposed both for occupation and in 
construction.  
 
P14  Wildflower meadows pilot was good, but when is this being rolled out as standard 
practice? 
 
P16 200+50 new rooves were fitted, why weren’t 200+50 PV arrays installed? 
 
P17 600 PV panels across housing stock – in what time frame and what percentage of 
housing stock is that?  Where are the plans to roll it out to all housing stock  (where 
feasible) and also all other buildings under council control. This has to be a pre-requisite 
for commercial development as well.  
 
P17 What are the remote areas for air source heat pumps and what percentage impact is 
this? Where are the pilot studies in other locations to test the possibilities and where are 
the requirements to fit these as standard in newbuilds? 

 
Cllr Jill Weston 

 
Thank you for arranging the Town Hall consultation and engaging with the local community 
on this urgent issue. 
 
I am responding to the Council's Climate Change Strategy as (a) the administrator at 
Ludwick Family Centre and (b) a councillor concerned about climate change. Here are my 
questions: 
 
1. Page 10: Our Council's pension fund is managed by HCC but HCC still has investments 
in fossil fuel companies. I have found the following as reported by a Hemel Hempstead 
newspaper:  
 
In December (2019) the Hertfordshire pension fund had £94million invested in fossil fuel 
companies. But data – reported to a meeting of the county council’s performance and 
resources cabinet panel on Friday (September 4) – now shows that by June (2020) that 
had dropped to £48 million. 
 
The HCC Performance and Resources Committee said they could not influence how the 
HCC Pension Committee invests the fund - this would impinge on the main point of the  
fund, which is to get the best value for the organisations and individuals being paid from 
the fund.  I cannot accept this argument as best value is surely to ensure there is a decent 
future for our children and grandchildren.  
 

Page 50



CAN WE JOIN WITH THE OTHER 7 DISTRICT AND BOROUGH COUNCILS AND WITH 
THE HCC SUSTAINABILITY GROUP TO ASK THAT THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE OF 
HCC COMPLETELY DIVEST FROM THESE FOSSIL FUEL INVESTMENTS AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY? 
 
2.CAN WE PLEASE COMPLETE THE REVIEW OF THE COST IMPLICATIONS OF 
CHANGING OUR ENERGY CONTRACTS TO A RENEWABLE SUPPLIER AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY? 
 
3.Policy SADM 16 in the submitted Local Plan is mentioned as seeking to protect and 
enhance the borough's biodiversity assets and ecological networks. However, I have found 
no such willingness by those officers overseeing the Local Plan for WHBC to genuinely 
seek to protect and enhance the biodiversity on The Commons Local Nature Reserve. In 
answer to the Inspector's question as to how wide the green corridor should be, the local 
Green Corridor Group put together published academic research - and concluded from the 
detailed evidence they submitted in the document that the corridor should be at least 200 
metres wide. Unfortunately, this recommendation has not been taken up and instead 100 
metres is the width recommended by the Council. This was also categorically stated to me 
in a Zoom meeting I had about this issue with the Head of Planning, Colin Haigh, and 
Planning Policy officer, Sue Tiley.  A 100 metres width corridor, the Green Corridor Group 
advises, will not protect and enhance the wildlife on The Commons LNR.  COULD WE GO 
BACK AND LOOK AT THIS AGAIN? 
 
4.It is heartening to read that WGC has been registered as a 'Tree City of the World' but 
we have not yet taken up the 'Standard 5' suggestion on the website to 'Celebrate 
Achievements' by holding' an annual celebration of our trees to raise awareness amongst 
the residents and acknowledge the citizens and staff members who carry out the 
borough's tree programmes'. This would be an excellent way of engaging local people in 
the issues around the carbon sequestering that trees do and from there, to more general 
climate change issues. COULD WE ESTABLISH A DATE IN THE CALENDAR TO HOLD 
THIS CELEBRATION? 
 
5.Gas heating is to be banned from new homes from 2025. There is no mention of this in 
the Strategy document. CAN WE LOOK AT GROUND SOURCE HEAT PUMPS AND ANY 
OTHER ALTERNATIVES? IS THERE A GRANT WE COULD APPLY FOR IN THE SAME 
WAY THAT WHBC HAS APPLIED FOR A GRANT TO CHANGE FROM GAS BOILERS 
IN THREE OF OUR OWN BUILDINGS? 
 
6.Given the urgency of the situation we should not be content with our target of at least 
48% of household waste to recycling/composting. Three Rivers have reached 63% and St 
Albans 62.1%. CAN WE LOOK AT WHAT THESE TWO COUNCILS DO AND TRY TO 
LEARN LESSONS? CAN WE START LOOKING AT RECYCLING FOR FLATS AS SOON 
AS THE COVID RESTRICTIONS CEASE? CAN WE LIAISE WITH THE WASTE 
SECTION OF THE HCC SUSTAINABILITY FORUM? 
 
7.CAN WE LOOK AGAIN AT GRASS VERGE AND OTHER GRASSED AREAS FOR 
PLANTING AND MANAGEMENT OF WILDFLOWER MEADOWS, INCLUDING LIAISING 
WITH THE BIODIVERSITY SECTION OF THE HCC SUSTAINABILITY FORUM? These 
areas would be a very visible way of showing our commitment to 'protect and enhance the 
borough's (or the county's) biodiversity assets'. it has been argued that cutting has to be 
done by hand but on reading about good management practice I have found that for 
example tractor flails and cut and collect machinery is advocated. Please see: 

Page 51



https://www.plantlife.org.uk/application/files/3315/7063/5411/Managing_grassland_road_v
erges_Singles.pdf See also: 
https://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/roadvergecampaign/inspiring-stories/ 

 
Resident 

 
I like that you want to do something about the climate change. 
 
An easy start could be to bring cycle and walking paths to the same quality as roads, or 
the other way around. At the moment one feels like second class when cycling along most 
cycle tracks. Mud and leaves covering half the width of the pavement, large holes, uneven 
surface, tight corners entering underpasses, narrow sidewalks next to wide roads. 
If roads were like cycle paths, people wouldn't drive. 
 
I'm happy to go on a cycling tour with you through Welwyn and Hatfield and show you 
were pedestrians and cyclist can feel like second class. 
 
I would like to give one example about where improvements can be made to prioritise 
pedestrians over cars. 
 
In Digswell, the pavement along Hertford Road is very narrow, especially along the right 
hand side in the eastwards direction between the roundabout with Harmer Green Lane 
and Digswell Lane. I marked the area in red in the attached image below. Decreasing the 
road width so that cars have to wait for each other to pass (instead of pedestrians 
currently) can be a small improvement to show that the council thinks that CO2-free traffic 
is important. 
 
Please let me know what you think? 

Page 52

https://www.plantlife.org.uk/application/files/3315/7063/5411/Managing_grassland_road_verges_Singles.pdf
https://www.plantlife.org.uk/application/files/3315/7063/5411/Managing_grassland_road_verges_Singles.pdf
https://plantlife.love-wildflowers.org.uk/roadvergecampaign/inspiring-stories/


 

 
 
Out of curiosity, how many people working in this group walk or cycle to work occasionally 
or regularly? 

 
Resident 

 
The one thing that I think appears to be missing from your strategy is there is nowhere I 
could see which showed your leadership role in explaining what practical steps ordinary 
residents can take to bring their properties up to scratch in terms of reducing heat loss and 
thus carbon emissions in the future.  On assumes that national standards will have to be 
agreed on this and guidance on what the position will be over next few decades, etc.  This 
will be will be essential since there will be hordes of questionable operators jumping on 
this bandwagon in due time.   
 
I think that residents will want to know to what new standards they should adapt their 
existing properties.  So, so for example,  will they have to line their internal wall with 
thermal wall paper?  This exists already but is it to the right specification.   Will they have 
to go to triple glazing? Etc. 
 
The sooner these are published the better as some early adopters will want to start 
adapting their properties as soon as they can. 

 

Page 53



Resident 

 
Hope you are keeping well. 
 
I have responded to your survey during the weekend, so hopefully you have my response 
already.  
 
I have been trying to get adequate recycling bins for flats in WelHat since I moved here 
three years ago. When I lived in St Albans previously we did have recycling for all types of 
waste streams there. Here we don’t have plastic, cardboard or the food waste bins. 
This is the current state of the local area for recycling (see pictures below) which is 
overflowing. The bins generally are full most of the time and leads to recycling flowing onto 
the floor. This is why it is frustrating to try and ‘do our bit’ for the planet.  
 

           
 
Resident 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment. There is a lot of good intent. 
 
Reducing the councils energy footprint is clearly moving in the right direction. 
 
Current Local Plan 
 
However having spent considerable time looking at the detail of the submitted Local plan, 
two thoughts occur: 
 

 The current local Plan is a massive missed opportunity  
 if people seriously think that the positive steps being claimed are adequate, there 

will be a serious problem.  
 
I don't believe it would be realistic to make the necessary changes to the Local Plan 
currently under examination. 
 
It would be better to acknowledge its weaknesses and discuss what will be done better in 
the next iteration, which will need to be started shortly after. 
 
Areas for Improvement in future Local plans: 
 

Page 54



 no preference, or encouragement is being given to developers using any of a 
number of the currently viable technologies  

o given that solar power and ground source energy systems, should this not be 
mandated for all new builds?  

o likewise water recovery systems?  
 There is no coherent plan for cycling and walking.  

o There was no reference about cycle paths until recently when concerns 
about sustainability were raised.  

o easy access to single shops, will not cut it. To be feasible one needs access 
to multiple shops and facilities in a single trip  

o cycle routes and cycle priority crossings need to be joined up and provide 
access to multiple locations, otherwise cycling will not be common.  

o adequate secure cycle parking will be needed at all destinations. How many 
are there in any of Welwyn Hatfield's shopping locations?  

o new developments are not being co-located with shopping areas and 
transport links.  

 The Green Corridor is a post-hoc developer led PR stunt to present the damage 
being done as a "good thing". PS Heartwood Forest is to the west of Symondshyde 
not the North!  

 
You are right that post-Covid we need to think about "lessons learnt". 
 

 Internet connectivity and the incentives for working from home from home need to 
improved.  

 people are walking and exploring their local area now (and possibly more than 
should are travelling into Hertfordshire). We need to protect our Greenbelt - clearly 
The NPPF is just a window-dressing.  

 The submitted local plan increases the amount of retail, with Debenhams closing 
and other shops under threat do we really need more shopping space? better and 
more rational use of "click and collect" perhaps.  

 The submitted local plan may have a wish to improve sustainability, unfortunately 
much of the content and proposed sites do little to help!  

 The Local Plan Sustainability Appraisal criteria and scoring are biased and 
inadequate. These too look to be after the event rather than embedded.  

 I question whether so much extra additional employment site area will be required 
as employment patterns change.  

 
Resident 

 
In the Action Plan section you state: 
 
"The Council has undertaken an agile working review to identify actions to allow staff to 
work in the office, at home and out on site. It anticipates that this will reduce commuting 
rates, mileage claims and printing costs. 
 
Prior to coronavirus lockdown, the Council webcast its most important public committee 
meetings, so that people did not have to travel to physically attend them. The Council is 
currently holding virtual public committee meetings and webcasting all of them as it is not 
possible to host physical meetings. The Council will undertake a governance review to 
decide whether to continue webcasting all public committee meetings in future". 
 
My comment on this statement: 

Page 55



 
I personally repeatedly requested that the council record and stream its public committee 
meetings over many years. It was clear that the previous council leadership was against 
this idea and came out against it on several occasions. When the leadership changed a 
few years ago the situation changed and moves were made to do this. Almost all of our 
neighbouring councils had been doing so for some years already. Partly for reasons of 
transparency, and partly because it was seen as environmentally friendly, reducing the 
carbon emissions that may come from potentially unnecessary journeys to the council 
chambers.  
 
Following a shaky start and a change of software the system at WHBC now seems to work 
well in the main. Although it usually fails when it comes to member voting and the viewer 
can often not see the public voting screen properly. I can though sit at home and watch 
proceedings of an evening on my television if I wish, or at a later date. This development is 
to be applauded, although it is now the norm for most Local Authorities. WHBC was late to 
the party, but it got there in the end.  
 
The Climate Change related benefits of this are obvious. Elected members, officers, and 
public gallery visitors do not need to make as many vehicle journeys, which of course 
saves carbon emissions. In addition, WHBC potentially reduces the amount it spends 
reimbursing members on mileage expenses. In this era of ongoing funding reductions from 
government that surely has to be welcome. I note that in 2017-18 WHBC paid out almost 
£5000 in mileage claims to members, in addition to their basic and additional expenses. 
 
I'm aware that reports for meetings can sometimes be very lengthy, these long reports are 
often printed out by the dozen for the face to face chamber meetings. Having virtual 
meetings should reduce this requirement, saving not only money, but also paper, which is 
of course is a Climate Change benefit.  
 
After many years of getting things where they ought to be for the residents of the borough, 
making the Council's business more accessible and more accountable, the Council should 
not use this Climate Change review to reduce the webcasting of its meetings. It is clear 
that the opposite is true, the more meetings are webcasted the greater the savings to the 
council, both financially, and more importantly in this instance, as a Climate Change 
mitigation measure. I sincerely hope this Council's strategy is to do more of this, not less.  
 
As an addendum, it is interesting to watch the cut and thrust of Council meetings from arm 
armchair. The poor showing from some councillors, the sniping and rudeness of some 
councillors, in the past I have also seen councillors who appear to be dozing...until the 
time comes to vote. I vividly recall the occasions where Councillors debate a matter and 
speak for or against it, only to apparently vote the opposite way, i.e. against themselves, at 
the member vote at the end of the meeting. Webcasting these meetings should add to the 
checks and balances in place that uphold local democracy. Allowing the public to more 
easily witness all of this behaviour adds to the checks and balances, and I'm sure 
encourages some councillors to check and self-regulate their own behaviour. In the 
knowledge what they say is being broadcast and recorded for posterity.  
 
In summary, webcasting of meetings is a win-win-win, from a Climate Change, financial 
and democratic perspective. There should more of it, not less. 

 
Resident 

 

Page 56



I have just reread the document and would like to make the following comments: 
 
1. In the section where it describes "territorial emissions" could this be made clearer 
please? Do you mean that it excludes aircraft emissions? It would be useful to explain. I 
know this has been a controversial exclusion in figures so it is important to make it clear 
what it is you are referring to. 
 
2. Do you have any more information that would be useful in your baseline section? It is 
fine as far as it goes but it would be interesting and useful to know pollution levels, any 
further markers of resident behaviour etc 
 
3. The target for planting 300 street trees per year sounds great. Would it be possible in 
the document to include how many trees have been planted in the last few years so we 
have something to compare it to? 
 
4. The passage that says "will continue encourage and where necessary plant some 
wildflower meadows along key roads" does not make sense to me. I am not sure of the 
sentence construction but I am also a bit concerned about the phrase "where necessary". 
Surely wildflower verges/meadows should be planted where ever possible. What are key 
roads? 
 
5. When you say that the Council is supporting the Hatfield Living Lab project does this 
mean you are supporting it financially? If so, will this be subject to the same assessment of 
being cost effective v value to the environment? 
 
6. I would like to question the sentence "The Council provides weekly collections of small 
electrical items, textiles and household batteries".  I understand this is a limited service. 
Whenever I have put things out they have not been collected. I don't think many people 
know about it either. 
 
7. I would like to ask about the Council target of at least 48% of household waste to be 
sent for recycling etc. I appreciate that this is a baseline but are there  plans to increase it? 
 
8. I was surprised to see that the Council has been involved in campaigns such as "fighting 
fast fashion". It would be great if this sort of thing could have a higher profile. I was not 
aware of Council support before. 
 
9. It would be great if you could survey people who use or might use recycling banks. It 
seems they are well used and are often overflowing. It would be great to know that the 
council had a plan either to increase the banks, increase the collections from the banks 
and ask users about the facilities they offer. Perhaps they could be even more of a 
resource than they are now. 
 
10. There are quite a few mentions of trees but, as far as I can see, no mention of hedges. 
Have the Council been made aware of the research into how hedges are better for the 
environment in some circumstances. Perhaps that is in the more detailed documents 
about planning etc? 
 
11. Finally, does the Council monitor good practice on the environment by other councils? 
East Herts seem to have been far better at consulting residents and interested parties, St. 
Albans have a fantastic Sustainable Group that was initiated by a Councillor and 

Page 57



Stevenage have recently looked into introducing a biodiversity requirement into their 
planning regulations. 
 
Apologies for all these questions. It really is fantastic that the Council are planning on more 
action now so I don't want to be critical really. It is just such an important issue though. 
 
Thank you to everyone involved in organising the meeting on Thursday. I found it very 
interesting. 
 
Following the meeting there are several further things I would like to add to my previous 
comments: 
 
1. Fiona stated that Herts have the highest water usage per person in the country but there 
was no further comment on this. Should this be something included in the baseline and 
then suggested actions can be added? 
 
2. I agree with the person who said that the tone of the document does not really convey 
the emergency aspect of this issue. 
 
3. Fiona suggested that the on line event could be annual. This is not very impressive 
compared to other councils and not very good in light of the council target to make the 
strategy inclusive. 
 
4. I suggested that the baseline facts should be extended in my previous email. To that 
extent I agree with Malcolm Cowan that it would be great to get further information from 
County about car/bus/bike/train use at the moment so targets could be set. 
 
5. I thought the idea of also declaring a biodiversity emergency was a great one. It would 
help with the idea of what we are facing and the actions the council needs to take. 
 
6. How can the council encourage the use of car clubs for residents? Are you looking at 
other councils who have done this? 
 
7. I appreciate that the next action for the council is to look at funding and cost 
effectiveness. I know it is political but this issue is key and the possible lack of money from 
central government could prevent all the hard work of officers actually being realised. What 
can be done about this? I was looking at the transport document by HCC which looks 
great in theory but there is little money to carry it out. This cannot not be the way to deal 
with an emergency. 
 
8. I fundamentally disagree with the last speaker (Gill Taylor) that the key to the 
emergency is individual behaviour. The key to this issue is central government action and 
funding for local government. Without this, individual behaviour is completely insignificant. 
However, I do agree with getting individuals on board. Communication and education are 
important if only so that individuals put pressure on the government. To this degree, is the 
council should be aware of the research that shows that many people can only deal with a 
limited number of emergencies in their lives. If people are trying to deal with a health 
emergency,  a financial emergency or any other crisis then they are less likely to be able to 
cope with the climate emergency. This is not always the case but it needs to be taken into 
account when the council are dealing with messaging. 

 
Resident 

Page 58



 
Overview Comments: 
 
The provision of a Council Climate Strategy document is to be welcomed.  However it is 
best described as ‘embryonic’.   
 
Comments as follows: 
 
The strategy has no discernible framework linking strategic metrics with deliverable 
activities. 
 
There is limited benchmarking with peer / national exemplar organisations 
 
There are lots of ‘will consider’ statements with no timeframe for a decision/ ACTION. 
 
There should be a separation of direct Council reduction actions (e.g. in Council buildings) 
from indirect influences upon the public. 
 
There is no exemplar activity that shows the Council as a leader in any way? 
 
It is surprising that the benefits of the Garden City in the Council are not broadcast more 
loudly.  The presence of so many trees offsets a lot of carbon! 
 
Baseline 
 
It would be beneficial if the tabulated information could be a subset of the graph? 
 
All of the actions should be linkable to the strategic graph. 
 
The Council has £100k expenditure for action but does not say what it is. 
 
The status of the ‘Agile Working Review’ is unclear.  The Council started from a very low 
baseline…   
 
The use of online Council meetings has been a welcome (and long overdue) part of the 
pandemic.  However meetings appear to be unnecessarily cumbersome and the process 
should be reviewed to make them more efficient. 
 
The Council’s IT appears to be sub-optimal and should be urgently reviewed e.g. including 
climate performance measures in the selection process. 
 
Care should be taken to avoid ‘quick wins with long term pains’.  There are examples 
where it has been remotely decided (without consultation) that reports will not be printed 
which end up increasing workload and travel – thereby increasing the carbon impact.  
Holistic solutions should be produced that review the whole process and their impacts. 
 
Are there alternatives to the printed Life/ One magazine? 
 
It is important that there have been reductions as stated.  However the Council started 
from a very poor position.  It is more important that there is proper benchmarking with peer 
/ national exemplar organisations. 
 

Page 59



Council Building Actions: 
 
No visible control of Council offices energy usage– occupants feel over-heated/cooled in 
the Council offices. 
 
Planning: 
 
The managed addition of household porches should be selectively allowed to reduce heat 
loss and the household carbon footprint. 
 
Environment Actions: 
 
Tree Warden group would benefit from overhaul to harness the untapped energies of 
volunteers e.g. grouping by locality, more regular updates etc. 
 
The planting of 300 street tree per annum does not look ambitious – less than the 
replacements? 
 
Tree planting should provide an amenity e.g. shade. 
 
The Council should promote the planting of trees in private gardens.  Trees that are 
removed should be replaced. 
 
Council tree planting should be watered more attentively.  There appear to be no 
incentives or penalties on Council Contractors. 
 
Council flower planting should be more environmentally friendly.  There appear to be 
whole swathes that are ripped out and replaced each year.  More consideration should be 
made toward annuals. 
 
It is notable that the Town Centre has no encouragement of bird life and pollinators do not 
appear to be encouraged (despite statement to the contrary) 
 
Council managed woodland areas are not visibly managed and present a ‘quick win’ 
opportunity for improvement.  My local area (designated by the uninspired title the Valley 
Road Plantation) does not have a management plan despite repeated requests and the 
requirement under Standing Orders. 
 
Woodland bio-diversity could be improved e.g. the wild garlic areas in Valley Road 
Plantation provide more for pollinators than the whole of the woodland… 
 
It is good to see that the Green Corridor has been promoted.  However the Council had 
proposed that Birchall Garden Suburb be built over a key part of it. 
 
Transport: 
 
Council car parking spaces appear to be unrestricted.  There must be opportunities for 
process improvement. 
 
The electric car loan scheme needs a complete overhaul and expansion e.g. people block 
book it and do not use it, late return of the vehicle has no consequences etc. 
 

Page 60



16 electric car charging points is lamentable. 
 
Car parking generally – would benefit from a dynamic online system so that spaces can be 
located and the usage % could be increased – thereby removing the need for a multi-
storey car park in the Conservation Area. 
 
Reduce the need for cars e.g. Encourage cycling through free-to-use bikes. 
 
The cycle lane on Hunters Bridge was a laudable idea but was badly implemented (why 
not devote a section of the large pavements?).  It also did not lead anywhere or link to 
anything. 
 
Council Housing: 
 
No mention of the Council’s construction standard! 
 
The activities listing is unambitious and lacks a discernable strategy. 
 
No link between energy saving measures and the measurement of reduced bills. 
 
No green energy supplier offering. 
 
Energy: 
 
It is surprising that the Council is not using a green energy supplier 
 
No visible control of Council offices energy usage– occupants feel over-heated/cooled in 
the Council offices. 
 
Photo-voltaic panel installations should still be reviewed.  Guidelines should be given for 
each locality. 
 
Water Actions: 
 
These are surprisingly brief!  Hertfordshire allegedly has a high water usage per person – 
maybe because of excess leakages. 
 
Impact on waterways? 
 
Waste Actions: 
 
Household Waste Recycling Centres are difficult to access with long environmentally-
unfriendly car queues.  Process review required. 
 
The Council should re-introduce the collection of large electrical items. 
 
The Council should be more active on fly-tipping and it’s root causes 
 
Behavioural Actions: 
 
Carbon-offsetting should be the default option ONLY AFTER reducing the carbon impact. 
 

Page 61



To call climate change ‘a remote and slow-moving problem in the future’ is playing down 
the issue. 

 
Resident 

 
Please accept the following as my response to your Climate Change Strategy consultation. 
 
I welcome the council climate change strategy paper but find it full of disconnected 
information. 
 
This paper does not offer a plan of action that can make a meaningful consultation. 
It is unfortunate that this consultation was offered over Dec/ Jan period specially since 
there have been 4 other consultation since October. 
HG Construction 
MTVH 
Wheat Quarter 
Campus West multi storey car park 
It is just far too many often overlapping. 
 
This paper contains too many “Council will consider” which are not sufficient to form a 
foundation. It sounds more like a wish list without commitment to a timed framework for 
Action. 
 
It is not clear what actions the £100,000 council climate change budget will be spend on. 
 
The council should make the advantages of Welwyn Garden City environment, better 
known and capitalise on it. Trees capture carbon and are important for a healthy 
environment and part of this garden city plans. WGC should always have more trees than 
other part of the Borough 
 
Council should continue to review and give guidelines for solar panel installations 
depending on their locality in Welwyn Garden City. 
 
If the Council is seriously means: 
“The Council will also use planning conditions and planning obligations to ensure 
compliance with land contamination remediation strategies, air quality and air pollution, 
noise, vibration, odour and light pollution assessments.” 
What does it want to build homes/school over the 70 years of waste landfill at Birchall 
Garden suburb? 
 
Council should find the reason for the amount of fly tipping around us and find ways of 
reducing it. 
 
What are the long term harm of the following decision? 
The Council currently considers that the cost of upgrading the insulation of its council 
buildings would outweigh any potential saving, but will keep this situation under review. 
 
What are the council plans to make sure hundreds of social and affordable hones being 
built on Broadwater Road are heated by green energy or without fossil fuel? 
 
Council should do more than merely “ Look at ways of reducing emissions from the sport 
and leisure premises managed by GLL” 

Page 62



Are there examples of other councils achieving this? 
 
Although promoting cycling and provision of cycle Lane are good, the cycle Lane over 
Hunters Bridge is waste of money and at times dangerous. It is too wide and doesn’t lead 
to anywhere. More cyclists are using the pavement that this cycle Lane. 
 
If the council is serious about taking action on climate change it should not build a multi 
storey Carpark at Campus West which is next to homes and in Conservation area, 
 
Broadcasting the Council meetings is a very valuable service to the public and should be 
increased. Residents waited a long time for this service to start and put up with teething 
problems at the beginning . More meetings should be available online. 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY
	21-02-25 CC Member Group Appendix 1 CC Strategy
	21-02-25 CC Member Group Appendix 2 CC Action Plan (v2)
	21-02-25 CC Member Group Appendix 3 consultation responses


